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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
(“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.
The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM
mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of China Bio-Med Regeneration
Technology Limited collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology
Limited. The directors of China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology
Limited, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best
of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report
is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading
or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or the “Director(s)”)
of China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | am pleased to present
our annual report for the year ended 30 April 2013.

Throughout the year, with the joint efforts contributed by all our
staff, our new plant has reached the industrialization standard and
acquired the premises permit in May 2013. Currently, our new plant
has entered into the trial production stage, and it shall commence
production upon obtaining all necessary certificates and approvals
from the relevant regulatory bodies in the PRC. At present, the Group
has been building up our marketing network across the country,
preparing for marketing and sales in the future.

The tissue engineering technology is a frontier scientific subject in the
world that only a handful of foreign companies have really started its
industrialization. However, the Company is committed to this tissue
engineering industrialization through continuous innovations. We
stick to the philosophy of “Integration of Enterprise, University and
Research” as well as adhere to strong social responsibilities and
sense of mission. For instance, in January this year, we collaborated
with the University of Hong Kong thru sponsoring on a research
project in the advanced stage that focuses on the understanding of
the molecular mechanisms of aging and on the development of stem
cell related based anti-aging strategy.

In order to fulfill our mission and its tasks, the Company is required
to maintain a strong and healthy financial position. In September
2012 and April 2013, we successfully raised a total of approximately
HK$342 million for our current development, and possibly the
exploration of new opportunities. We devote ourselves to scientific
development and serving people’s health, while contributing to the
society and the prosperity of our motherland.

| hereby take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to all
fellow directors for their ongoing support and efforts to the Group.
In addition, I, on behalf of all Directors, would also like to thank the
officers and all staff for serving the Group, and especially our science
R&D team for their relentless efforts that has enabled our new plant to
step into the trial production stage of industrialization, and hope that
they will continue their dedication and diligence to attain desirable
achievement, and ultimately their efforts will translate into appealing
financial performance for our Group.

Deng Shaoping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 July 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEE WK O

OPERATIONS REVIEW

With the completion of the capital expansion on 30 October 2012,
the Group further injected RMB60 million as the registered capital of
Shaanxi Aierfu Activtissue Engineering Company Limited (“Shaanxi
Aierfu”), a subsidiary of the Group, and the equity interest held by
the Group increased from approximately 87.68% to approximately
91.85%. This increase secured sufficient working capital for Shaanxi
Aierfu to execute the progress of clinical trials as well as the trial
production, inspection and examination of the production base (the
“New Plant”) in Xian, the Shaanxi Province.

The New Plant in Xian has completed the installation of all equipment
for the production of ActivSkin which is under the trial production
phase. We successfully acquired the premises permit of the New
Plant in May 2013. Commercial production of ActivSkin is expected
to commence towards the end of the fourth quarter of 2013, upon
obtaining all necessary certifications and approvals from the relevant
regulatory bodies in the PRC.

Progress of the Clinical R&D Projects of Shaanxi Aierfu
and its Subsidiaries

Clinical R&D Projects of Shaanxi Aierfu

Our regenerative skin, “ActivSkin” is the principal product of Shaanxi
Aierfu at the present time. ActivSkin can relieve pains, shorten healing
time and reduce scarring for treating of burns and scalds. To broaden
the applications of ActivSkin, we have continuously worked with
major hospitals for clinical trials on chronic refractory diabetes foot
ulcers. These clinical trials have achieved good curative results, and
we have finished approximately 78% of the required trials by the
end of May 2013. We expect these clinical trials will be completed
in the second half of 2013 or early 2014, although the response and
reception from each individual trial sample/patient vary from case to
case. Upon satisfactory completion of the required clinical trials, the
Group will then apply to BIXREm&mEEEIRF (State Food and
Drug Administration) of the PRC for authorisation of this additional
application on diabetes ulcers.

For another product that mainly targeted on second degree burns,
the recombinant human acellular dermal matrix, an economic
version of ActivSkin, we have also entered into clinical trials and have
completed approximately 35% of the required trials by the end of May
2013. We expect these clinical trials will be completed by the end of
2014, although the response and reception from each individual trial
sample/patient vary from case to case.

China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited Annual Report 2013

EF5EIRE

FR_T-—_FTA=THETHKAEEER - K
SEHIEARBE000BTERREE ZHEA
AIRANREABTEERAR ([BRENERE])
MEMEAS  AEBZEREZHL87.68%
HEZE4991.85% ° LI B HEIRPRA LR E A 2
BEES  AURITSEARRMRRAEALE
EEM ([FHE]) OHERREER -

MR HBRED &SR T AREENSE
K BREaRERER - ZHfE—F—=F8A

%“EXIJJHX SHBEHEER ZBEZEFRL
HEESHFNTEABEERBNES MILE

BRET BABE_Z—=FREFNFFER
F o

B LS KB [T /& 2 AR F AR i TR B
HYE /R

75 R Y i AR A R R
B BAERE [ Z8E | ZREEE B ATH

TEBEEM-  REREEMEEGNREIEANA
BIRERBERR  BEBESKRME  WRE

R RTBAZBEZERAGE RMAEERS
RE B?z?‘dﬂ&IE%’Em'\MﬁW?EET%&ﬁTEﬁﬁ%ﬁ
B THF - ELBRAABRIUS R IFHERLE
YR-F—=FRAEK" ?ﬁfFﬁE%«%EXTZ’WS%
PrEmai RMAANELERARSE-F
—=FTHFR-_FT-NFEFYxK B %E?L
FEABREER, /HEEZRERERNOTEE
MJE ° FEPT 7 HO bR IR S8R B R STAk 1% E'Mrféﬁf
Iﬁiﬁfﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ’ltﬁﬁfﬁ REE B IHE RHX
RAPERARRREREEEIEBEITEM -

BRE—TEHURIEREZER [EAARA
RENEE (AN) | (KERNLZEE) Rt
EANGRBRER R-ZT-—=FAARDTK
#36% T AR  WFRHELHRAARSE -
T-NFEFRTKR  EERFEERBEALR
BEZRELEZNOTRERME °



+

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEN WK O

OPERATIONS REVIEW (Cont’d)

Progress of the Clinical R&D Projects of Shaanxi Aierfu
and its Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Clinical R&D Projects of Shaanxi Aierfu (Cont’d)

For the acellular cornea taken care by the subsidiary of our Shaanxi
AiNear Cornea Engineering Company Limited (“Shaanxi AiNear”) in
Shenzhen, we have finished over 85% of the required trials by the
end of May 2013. We expect these clinical trials will be completed
by the end of 2013, although the response and reception from each
individual trial sample/patient vary from case to case. The Directors
intend to apply for the production license in respect of the acellular
cornea upon the completion of the required clinical trials, expecting to
be in the first half of 2014. Thereafter, the acellular cornea is expected
to go into commercial production. Sales and marketing activities of
the cornea products, which are expected to begin in the second half
quarter of year 2014.

For the selective acellular porcine skin, which is developed by our
subsidiary Shaanxi AiBosin Bioengineering Company Limited, we
have completed approximately 20% of the required clinical trials by
the end of May 2013. We expect these clinical trials will be completed
by the end of 2014, although the response and reception from each
individual trial sample/patient varies from case to case.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

With the increasing prevalence of stem cell related research and
development, scientists from all over the world are stampeding to
explore the possibility of transforming the results of these research
and development into meaningful applications and products on
human beings. The Group’s first tissue engineering product, the
ActivSkin, is the first regenerative product that was recognised with
a registered certificate in the PRC. In addition, our tissue engineering
production base in Xian, the Shaanxi Province was also the first of
its kind in the PRC. The Group will continuously devote our effort on
research and development of other tissue engineering products, and
will seek cooperation opportunities to build research and development
centers in Hong Kong as well as in the PRC. At the same time, we will
speed up the clinical trials endeavor on our existing acellular cornea
and acellular porcine skin.
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BEEE WK O

BUSINESS OUTLOOK (Cont’d)

The Group’s sales arm, PRFGFPAR L= 2R AR A A ([ PR
FRg&EE |) has been seeking the opportunity to acquire suitable
medical products and equipment for sales in order to enhance our
business development venture. Medical products and equipment we
are currently selling include gastroscopic lubricant, digestive tract
stent, cardiac stents and negative pressure drainage. Sales of these
products are expected to contribute to our revenue in the second
half of year 2013. At the same time, we are building up a sales
team to take care of the sales of third parties’ medical products and
equipment. We have already built our present in a number of major
cities in China, including Yinchuan, Lanzhou, Shenyang, Harbin,
Nanning and Shaoguan. In addition, our sales team has penetrated
11 hospitals in Shaanxi Province as of June 2013, and we plan to
continue this penetration and reach out to approximately 60 hospitals
and clinics of second class and above by the end of year 2013. With
these actions in place, our sales team can be well prepared and our
sales network established. When our own products are ready to roll
out, we expect the sales and marketing infrastructure to be there for
us to promote our products.

In January 2013, we sponsored the University of Hong Kong on
a research project in the advanced stage that focuses on the
understanding of the molecular mechanisms of aging and on
the developing of stem cell based anti-aging strategy. We will
continuously seek collaboration opportunity with the University of
Hong Kong and/or other leading institutions, in particular, in the area
of longevity and anti-aging strategies. We branched out from this
collaboration and in June 2013, we set up a company in Hong Kong
to develop supplements and Traditional Chinese Medicine products
which are intended to provide remedies for osteoporosis. Their related
registrations in Hong Kong are expected to begin in the third quarter
of 2013. Trial production, marketing, and clinical testing if necessary
of these products are expected to follow thereafter.

Our production plant in Shenzhen Zhonghai Technology Park (73|
FRIEHERHRE) for our acellular cornea has been under renovation
and installation of equipment, which are expected to complete by
the end of 2013. On the other hand, our new Beijing head office is in
the progress of setting up, which is expected to complete in second
half of 2013. This Beijing Head Office is intended to centralize our
operations in the PRC, from monitoring of our production facilities,
clinical trials and product registrations, to assisting in sales and
marketing activities as well as coordinating efforts in present and
future research and development investments.

The PRC government has been committing to provide supports
towards hi-tech industries, including tissue engineering sector, a sub-
division of the bio-medical industries. We will continuously strive for
more assistance from the Chinese government to provide additional
resources for broadening our R&D coverage on tissue engineering
spectrum.

As the Group continues to identify and invest in suitable business
opportunities and expand and improve in its research and
development capability. We may also consider acquiring the
minority interests in the Group’s non-wholly owned subsidiaries,
the Board may consider further fund raising activities if viable fund
raising options, which are in the best interest of the Group and the
Shareholders, are available.

China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited Annual Report 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEN WK O

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Result

During the year under review, the Group’s main operation Shaanxi
Aierfu is still under trial production and accordingly, limited revenue
was generated during the year.

Revenue of approximately HK$1.38 million was generated for the
year ended 30 April 2013, an increase of approximately HK$1.25
million as compared to HK$0.13 million for the corresponding year in
2012. This increase was mainly the result of the increase of sales of
our principal product, ActivSkin. Loss for the year was approximately
HK$67.48 million, a slightly decrease of approximately HK$0.66
million as compared to HK$68.14 million for the year ended 30 April
2012. The decrease was the net results of the increase in research
and development cost of approximately HK$6.81 million and the
gain of HK$5.87 million arose from the waiver granted by the non-
controlling interests of subsidiaries and certain creditors upon the
debt restructuring arrangement and decrease in other general
operation expenses during the year. However, as a result of the
Group’s increased equity interest in Shaanxi Aierfu from approximately
87.68% to approximately 91.85%, the loss attributable to owners of
the Company was increased by approximately HK$4.21 million to
HK$61.32 million.

Net Assets

The net assets of the Group as at 30 April 2013 is approximately
HK$630.92 million, an increase of approximately HK$278.26 million,
as compared to approximately HK$352.66 million as at 30 April
2012. This increase was primarily the net results of net proceeds
of approximately HK$342 million from two fund raisings and the
operating loss of approximately HK$67.48 million recorded during this
financial year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As aforementioned, in order to maintain a strong and healthy financial
position for our current and future development, in September 2012
and April 2013, we successfully raised a total of approximately
HK$342 million. Of which approximately HK$100 million has been
applied in operation, acquisition and settlement of payables related
to the construction of the property, plant and equipment of Shaanxi
Aierfu.

As at 30 April 2013, cash and bank balances of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$272.33 million (2012: approximately HK$39.70
million) which were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)
Working Capital and Gearing Ratio

As at 30 April 2013, the Group had current assets of approximately
HK$307.44 million (2012: approximately HK$55.47 million), while its
current liabilities stood at approximately HK$102.99 million (2012:
approximately HK$126.42 million), representing a net current asset
position (2012: net current liabilities position) with a working capital
ratio (current assets to current liabilities) of 2.99 (2012: 0.44).

As at 30 April 2013, the Group’s total borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$47.85 million (2012: HK$52.17 million). The
Group's borrowings included bank loans of approximately HK$37.98
million (2012: HK$37.13 million), amounts due to non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries of approximately HK$6.89 million (2012:
HK$7.73 million), and interest-free payable to independent third party
of approximately HK$2.98 million (2012: HK$7.31 million, interest
bearing ranging from 5.5% to 36% per annum). The gearing ratio of
the Group as at 30 April 2013, calculated as net debt to equity was
0.08 (2012: 0.15).

Capital Structure

During the year, the issued shares of the Company increased by
1,955,000,000 shares to 9,011,880,000 shares as results of the two
fund raising activities of the Company during this financial year.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. The Directors
consider the impact of foreign exchange exposure of the Group is
minimal.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

On 24 October 2012, FD(H) Investments Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a capital increase agreement
with non-controlling interests of Shaanxi Aierfu, in which Shaanxi
Aierfu increased its registered capital from RMB116.90 million to
RMB176.90 million. The full amount of the capital increase was solely
contributed by the Group, being RMB60 million in cash. The capital
increase was completed on 30 October 2012, and the Group’s equity
interest in Shaanxi Aierfu increased from approximately 87.68% to
approximately 91.85%.

Save as disclosed above, there was no material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the year.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitment of the Group as at 30 April 2013 was
approximately HK$4.19 million (2012: approximately HK$2.59
million). It is related to the purchase of property, plant and equipment
contracted but not provided for net of deposit paid amount.

CHARGES ON ASSETS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

A bank loan with principal amounts of RMB30 million are secured by
the Group’s property, plant and equipment and land use rights with
carrying amounts of approximately HK$93.95 million (2012: HK$90.96
million) and HK$5.16 million (2012: HK$5.16 million) respectively. The
bank loan had been fully repaid subsequent to reporting date, and the
charge has been released accordingly.

As at 30 April 2013, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
(2012: Nil).

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed above, the Directors do not have any plans for
material investment or capital assets in the near future.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION AND
REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30 April 2013, the Group had 243 (2012: 199) employees
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China. As an equal opportunity
employer, the Group’s remuneration and bonus policies are
determined with reference to the performance and experience of
individual employees. The total amount of employee remuneration
(including that of the Directors and retirement benefits scheme
contributions) of the Group for the year was approximately HK$16.97
million (2012: approximately HK$15.69 million).

In addition, the Group may offer options to reward employees who
exhibit that they have offered significant contributions to the Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors

S/

Executive Directors

Mr. Dai Yumin (“Mr. Dai”), aged 52, is an executive Director and
the chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Dai joined the Group
in March 2009 and has been appointed as authorised representative
and compliance officer of the Company in the same year; and also
serves as a director of Shaanxi Aierfu. As at 30 June 2013, Mr. Dai
holds the Company’s substantial shareholders, namely All Favour
Holdings Limited, 60% equity interests and has 0.49% interests
in Shaanxi Aierfu. Mr. Dai holds a bachelor degree in Professional
Finance. In addition to the above, he is also a vice president of China
Leasing Company Limited* ([ EIgEHEBRAF]), and the
chairman of the R BIARH (5£E) BR A A

Ms. Wang Yurong (“Ms. Wang”), aged 52, is an executive Director.
Ms. Wang joined the Group in May 2013. Ms. Wang graduated
from Harbin University of Commerce with a Bachelor’s Degree in
Economics. She previously worked for Harbin, Heilongjiang Province
Bureau of Statistics, and had held various positions in or taken
charge of different divisions including industrial council, social affairs,
human resources and education department. After then, she worked
for the Human Resources Department of the Bank of China Beijing
Branch Office. After having been working for different divisions within
the government agency and large state-owned enterprise, Ms. Wang
accumulated nearly 20 years of extensive experience and knowledge
in macroeconomic analysis, social research, human resources
management and training. Ms Wang was a partner and director of
companies which engaged in clothing & apparel businesses, and in
agricultural science & technology areas. She has strong leadership
capabilities and good experience in brand designing, external
collaboration, business planning, marketing network development
and management.

* for identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors

S/

Non-Executive Directors

Professor Deng Shaoping (“Prof. Deng”), aged 54, is a non-
executive Director and Chairman of the Board. Prof. Deng joined our
Group in May 2013. Prof. Deng graduated from Chongging Medical
University Department of Medicine in 1983, and commenced his
work at the Sichuan Provincial People’s Hospital the same year. In
1990, while having served as an attending doctor in the Hepatobiliary
Surgery Division, Prof. Deng was designated and engaged in clinical
and research work in transplantation field of the University of Geneva,
Switzerland. During the period in Switzerland, he was awarded
the Swiss Federal Scholarship and received his Doctor Degree of
Medicine. In 1995, he had been transferred to the University of
Pennsylvania for post-doctoral research work, and was awarded U.S.
Organ Transplant Outstanding Young Scientific Research Awards
for four times. During 1999 to 2000, Prof. Deng engaged in islet
transplantation and xenotransplantation clinical and basic research at
the Surgical Transplant Center of the University of Western Ontario,
Canada. In 2000, he returned to the Surgical Transplant Centers of
the University of Pennsylvania and took charge of setting up the islet
transplantation laboratory and the subsequent clinical and research
development, and successfully established a new pilot project for islet
transplantation in the treatment of diabetes. In 2007, Prof. Deng was
invited to the Massachusetts General Hospital for the establishment
of a new islet transplant centers and was responsible for new projects
of islet transplantation carrying out in three affiliated hospitals of the
Harvard Medical School.

During his clinical and research work in organ transplantation in
Europe and the United States, Prof. Deng published more than 100
research papers on high-profile scientific journals and served as a
guest judge on multiple authoritative professional journals. He was
frequently invited to present specific reports in international academic
forums, and was invited by the well-known institutions to return to
China as a visiting professor for academic exchanges. Prof. Deng has
sound and valuable experience in clinical and experimental aspect in
respect to transplantation immunology, xenotransplantation, biology
of induced immunological tolerance, islet cell transplantation. He
was well recognised as one of the academic authorities in organ
transplantation, especially in islet transplantation for the treatment of
diabetes. Prof. Deng has also made outstanding contributions to the
basic research in transplant immunology, particularly on cellular and
molecular mechanisms of anti- CD45RB induced tolerance research
and his research is at the leading-edge of international standard.

At the end of 2008, China had launched “Thousand Talents Program
(The Recruitment Program of Global Experts)”, with the Sichuan
Province being one of the first comers to make the debut of the
“Hundred Talents Program”. Prof. Deng was the first person to be
introduced in this “Hundred Talents Program” and thus in 2009,
he formally returned to China to act as vice president of Sichuan
Academy of Medical Sciences, Sichuan Provincial People’s Hospital,
and the director of its Institute of Organ Transplantation.

In recent years, Prof. Deng and his research team has obtained
dozen subsidizes from National Natural Science Foundation and the
provincial and municipal scientific funds for carrying out a series of a
combination of basic research and clinical work, and has published a
number of high-influential research papers which attract widespread
global and domestic attention.
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Biographical Details of Directors

S/

Non-Executive Directors (Cont’d)

Mr. Wong Sai Hung (“Mr. Wong”), aged 58, is a non-executive
Director and the Vice-Chairman of the Board. Mr. Wong joined the
Group in June 2008 as non-executive Director. During the period
between August 2012 and April 2013, Mr. Wong had been the
executive Director. Between June 2008 to July 2009 and August
2012 to May 2013, he had been the Chairman of the Board. Mr.
Wong graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
higher diploma in Business Studies (Marketing). Currently, Mr. Wong
is also an independent non-executive director of the Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited (a company listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 388), Ping An Insurance (Group)
Company of China, Ltd. (a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 2318), ARN Investment SICAV (an
investment company listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange)
and One Asset Management Limited (a company incorporated in
Thailand). Mr. Wong also serves as an executive director of LW Asset
Management Advisors Limited. Previously, Mr. Wong was the chief
executive officer and director of ICBC (Asia) Investment Management
Company Limited, BOCI Prudential Asset Management Limited and
Prudential Portfolio Managers Asia, and as the independent non-
executive director of ARN Asian Enterprise Fund Limited (a company
listed on the Irish Stock Exchange).

Mr. Yang Zhengguo (“Mr. Yang”), aged 54, is a non-executive
Director. Mr. Yang joined the Group in March 2010. In May 2013, Mr.
Yang was re-designated from executive Director to non-executive
Director. Mr. Yang is also a director of Shaanxi Aierfu and Shaanxi
AiNear, which are the subsidiaries of the Company. He has 3.24% and
27.93% interests in Shaanxi Aierfu and Shaanxi AiNear respectively.
Mr. Yang was a Standing Committee Member of the Eighth Shaanxi
Provincial Committee of CPPCC (BRFEE B2 /\EHZE) in 1998,
a Standing Committee Member of the Ninth Shaanxi Provincial
Committee of CPPCC (BRP8& B 1## 58 /LIE %) in 2003, a Committee
Member of Yulin Shaanxi Provincial Committee of CPPCC (BXFG&
BT BIHZ B) in 2000. Mr. Yang was also a Standing Committee
Member of the Shaanxi Federation of Industry & Commerce (BtFG&
THEEAEEZE) in 2002 and has became the Vice-Chairman since
2012. Since 2007, he has been as a representative of the 11th and
12th National People’s Congress of Shaanxi Province (BRFE& %
+— +ZBAKKK). Mr. Yang has involved in various industries,
including trading, logistics, catering, real estate development, the
research, development and production of high-tech products, and is
well experienced in investment management, corporate management
and capital funding.
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Biographical Details of Directors

S/

Non-Executive Directors (Cont’d)

Mr. Ma Long (“Mr. Ma”), aged 54, is a non-executive Director and
chief internal auditor of the Company and he joined the Group in
March 2010. Mr. Ma graduated from Macau University of Science
and Technology with a master degree in Business Administration. Mr.
Ma has over twenty years of experience in taxation and he has been
working in the field of taxation in the Administration of Taxation of
PRC. He also obtained the qualifications of certified tax appraiser and
the accountant of the People’s Republic of China. He is a director of
Shaanxi Aierfu.

Mr. Wang Jianjun (“Mr. Wang”), aged 55, is a non-executive
Director and he joined the Group in May 2013. Mr. Wang graduated
in 1982 with a BA economics degree from the Northeast University
of Finance and Economics in the People’s Republic of China. After
graduation, he worked for the China Council for the Promotion of
International Trade in Beijing. In 1988, he attained his MBA Degree
from Durham University Business School in the United Kingdom.
From 1989 to 1999, Mr. Wang worked for China Resources Group
in Hong Kong. In 1999, he joined Shenzhen Xingtuo Industry and
Trading Company as General Manager. In 2003, Mr. Wang was
appointed as General Manager of China Hualu Electronic Import &
Export Corp. Since 2006, he has been the director of Mosaic (Beijing)
Investment Fund Management Co. Limited. Mr. Wang has many years
of investment and management experience.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lui Tin Nang (“Mr. Lui”), aged 55, is an independent non-
executive Director. He is also the chairman of audit committee and
nomination committee, and a member of remuneration committee
of the Company. Mr. Lui joined the Group in September 2004. He
has obtained a Bachelor degree in science from the University of
Leeds and a Master degree in Business Administration from the
University of Bradford in United Kingdom. He is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, and
a member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountant.
He has years of experience in accounting, auditing, taxation and
corporate finance. Mr. Lui had been an independent non-executive
director of Vital Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited now known as
CGN Mining Company Limited (Stock Code: 1164) and National
Investments Fund Limited (Stock Code: 1227). In addition, Mr. Lui
was also an independent non-executive director of Finet Group
Limited (Stock Code: 8317) from 26 August 2010 to 30 September
2010. Mr. Lui currently is an independent non-executive director of
CT Holdings (International) Limited, now known as Brilliant Circle
Holdings International Limited (Stock Code: 1008), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors

S/

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Cont’d)

Mr. Chan Wing Hang (“Mr. Chan”), aged 35, is an independent
non-executive Director and also the chairman of remuneration
committee, and a member of audit committee and nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. Chan joined the Group in August
2011. He obtained Bachelor degree in Business Administration
(Honors) in Accountancy from City University of Hong Kong and
was graduated from University of Hull in January 2012 with Master
degree in Business Management. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chan
is currently the chief financial officer and company secretary of Sijia
Group Company Limited (25 & E B R 2 7)) (the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange , stock code: 1863),
in which he is responsible for the overall financial control, company
secretarial, compliance and investor relation functions. Mr. Chan had
served as the financial controller, qualified accountant and company
secretary of China National Materials Company Limited (Ff B/ #1
&1 B R A 7)) (the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1893). He was the vice financial
controller, qualified accountant and company secretary of Western
Mining Company Limited (FaEBIEZERRD AR AR]) (the shares of
which are listed on The Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock Code:
601168), and the qualified accountant and company secretary of
Shinhint Acoustic Link Holdings Limited (% & A2 FE12AX B BR A 7)) (the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 2728), Mr. Chan has more than 13 years of experience
in accounting, finance, compliance, company secretarial, investor
relations and initial public offerings.

Mr. Chiu Chi Kong (“Mr. Chiu”), aged 45, is an independent non-
executive Director and the member of the audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Chiu
joined the Group on 20 September 2012. He obtained a Bachelor of
Laws degree from The University of Hong Kong in December 1992
and a Bachelor of Laws degree from Peking University in July 1997.
He was admitted as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in
September 1995 and a solicitor of the Supreme Courts of England and
Wales in October 1996. Mr. Chiu is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong.
Since November 2006, he has been a partner of Li & Partners, a law
firm in Hong Kong practising in corporate finance transactions such
as IPOs, mergers and acquisitions and corporate transactions. He has
considerable experience in corporate finance and compliance matters
for listed companies in Hong Kong. He is a member of the Law
Society of Hong Kong and the Law Society of England and Wales.
Mr. Chiu is also a China Appointed Attesting Officer appointed by the
Ministry of Justice of the PRC since April 2006 and an accredited
mediator of Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre since January
2004. Mr. Chiu is currently an independent non-executive director of
Chanceton Financial Group Limited (the shares of which are listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
stock code: 8020).

China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited Annual Report 2013
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Biographical Details of Directors

S/

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Cont’d)

Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny (“Mr. Pang”), aged 40, is an
independent non-executive Director, and is also a member of the
audit committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee
of the Company. Mr. Pang joined the Group on 20 September
2012. He is the principal of Pang & Co., a local law firm in co-
operation with Loeb & Loeb LLP, an international law firm with 7
representative offices around the world. Between 1997 and 2009,
Mr. Pang practiced as a lawyer with several international law firms
in Hong Kong and Sydney. He received his Bachelor degree in
Laws with honours from Bond University in 1996. In 1997, Mr. Pang
obtained his Graduate Diploma in Legal Practice and Master degree
in Laws from The College of Law and the University of New South
Wales respectively. He was admitted as a legal practitioner of the
Supreme Court of New South Wales in 1997 and as a solicitor of the
High Court of Hong Kong in 2009. He is a member of both the Law
Society of New South Wales and the Law Society of Hong Kong. Mr.
Pang is currently an independent non-executive director of Yuanda
China Holdings Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 2789).
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) is committed to maintain a high

standard of corporate governance practices. The Group believes

that high standard of corporate governance provides a framework

and solid foundation for achieving, attracting and retaining the high
standard and quality of the Group’s management, promoting high
standards of sound internal control, accountability and transparency

to all shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and also

meeting the expectations of the Group’s various stakeholders.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out

in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report to the Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “CG Code”)

from 1 May 2012 to 30 April 2013 except that after the resignation

of Mr. Sze Chin Hung, an independent non-executive Director, on 6

August 2012, the Company had only two independent non-executive

Directors and two audit committee members, the number of which

fell below the minimum number required under Rules 5.05(1), 5.05A

and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules until the Company appointed Mr.
Chiu Chi Kong and Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny to fill in the vacancy
on 20 September 2012.

Following the appointment of Mr. Chiu Chi Kong and Mr. Pang Chung
Fai Benny as independent non-executive Directors and members
of audit committee of the Company on 20 September 2012, the
Company has fully complied with the requirement of Rule 5.05(1),
5.05A and Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is charged with the duty to put in place a proper corporate

governance structure of the Company. It is primarily responsible for
setting directions, formulating strategies, monitoring performance and
managing risks of the Group. Under the Board, there are currently 3
subcommittees, namely audit committee, remuneration committee
and nomination committee. All these committees perform their
distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference
and assist the Board in supervising certain functions of the senior
management.

China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited Annual Report 2013
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Corporate Governance Report

GEEARE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition and Board Practices

The Board is responsible to the Shareholders for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs. Details of the membership of the
Board together with their roles and functions are posted on the Stock
Exchange and the Company’s website and such information shall be
updated whenever there are changes.

As at 30 April 2013, the Board comprised nine Directors, including
two executive Directors, namely Mr. Dai Yumin and Mr. Yang
Zhengguo; three non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Sai
Hung, Mr. Ma Long and Prof. Jin Yan; and four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lui Tin Nang, Mr. Chan Wing Hang,
Mr. Chiu Chi Kong and Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny.

On 9 May 2013, three new directors were appointed by the Board
and individual directorships had also been re-designated. Members
of the Board has then been increased to 11 members, with two
executive Directors, five non-executive Directors and four independent
non-executive Directors. Directors’ biographies are given on pages 12
to 17 of this annual report.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship amongst the Directors.

During the period between 1 May 2012 to 30 April 2013, the
management provided all members of the Board with monthly
updates (the “monthly updates”) in accordance with the code
provision C.1.2 of the CG Code.
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TRERRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Board Composition and Board Practices (Cont’d)

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.
The principle functions of the Board are to:

o establish the strategic direction and development of the Group;

o determine the broad policies, strategies and objectives of the
Group;

° approve annual budgets, major funding proposals, investment
and divestment proposals;

° oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy and integrity
of internal controls, risk management, financial reporting and
compliance;

° approve the nominations of directors by nomination committee
and appointment of external auditors;

° ensure accurate, adequate and timely reporting to, and
communication with Shareholders;

° monitor and manage potential conflicts of interest of
management, board members and Shareholders, including
misuse of corporate assets and abuse in related party
transactions; and

° assume responsibility for corporate governance.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the
executive Directors and senior management, while reserving certain

key matters for its approval. As at 30 April 2013, there were four
independent non-executive Directors so that there is a strong element

of independence in the Board to exercise independent judgment.

Moreover, at least one of the independent non-executive Directors
have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related

financial management expertise so that they are of sufficient caliber
and number for their views to carry weight.

China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited Annual Report 2013

552 (&)
BEFECHAREFETEH (B)
EESLINBRRBRER  FHEREAEE
ZHERMBRA - HEGZEBRES -

o HINAKEZREIESIRER :

o EEREEZEBECE  REREE

. BUEEEH EERARE -
3

BEMME

s EEHEANNERE RARERE - UKEHNR
BETERTEARBRRRTEZIZF

s WERERZESZEFREUNETEIER
SRAD

o  HERMBRELHER REMEKZZ2HK
ZFiil

e EENEEEHEE EFeXENMEERZE
ZEBENRER  BEIEERAREER
EREALRZTERBE K&

o AELEERZAME-

EEeRAKBEZAREFRRRTEERER
EEABRE BETIZEENAREEESE
o RZE—=FNA=1+H EFGHEAFEEL
BUFRTES  HBEEUEREEFSANERH
BIALT - ITEBMHE - I RO BB
FNTEFAARELSEXERA G SARY
BEEEEND  WHEEEMARLE  BHRMN
ERRFE N 2EH -



Corporate Governance Report

/JE‘ v/‘-a-\AiEI:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Board Composition and Board Practices (Cont’d)

During the year, the attributes, skills and expertise among the
Directors are considered appropriate to effectively lead and control the
Group, taking into account the scope and nature of its operations. To
ensure a balanced composition of skills and experience of the Board,
the Nomination Committee reviews from time to time the structure,
size, composition and member diversity of the Board. On 9 May
2013, as nominated by the Nomination Committee, one executive
Director, namely Ms. Wang Yurong and two non-executive Directors,
namely Prof. Deng Shaoping (also as Chairman) and Mr. Wang
Jianjun were appointed by the Board. The Directors of the Board have
a mix of core competencies in areas such as accounting and finance,
business and management, industry knowledge and marketing
strategies. The experience and qualifications of the Directors are set
out in the section of “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 12
to 17 of this Annual Report.

The independent non-executive Directors have the same duties of
care and skill and fiduciary duties as the Executive Directors. Their
functions include, but not limited to:

° participating in Board meetings to bring in independent
judgment to bear on issues of corporate strategy, corporate
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standard of conducts;

° taking the lead when potential conflicts of interests arise;

° serving on audit, remuneration and nomination committees, if
invited; and

o scrutinising the Group’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance.

Following the resignation of Mr. Sze Chin Hung on 6 August 2012,
the Company only had two independent non-executive Directors
and two audit committee members, the number of which fell below
the minimum number required under Rule 5.05(1), 5.05 A and Rule
5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. Following the appointment of Mr. Mr.
Chiu Chi Kong and Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny as independent non-
executive Directors and members of audit committee of the Company
on 20 September 2012, the Company has fully complied with the
requirement of Rule 5.05(1), 5.05 A and Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Board Composition and Board Practices (Cont’d)

During the year, at least one of independent non-executive Directors
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. Pursuant to the Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules, the Company has received a written confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors of their
independence to the Company. In the coming 30 September 2013,
Mr. Lui Tin Nang (“Mr. Lui”) has served as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company for nine years. In accordance
with the CG Code A.4.3, if an independent non-executive director
serves more than 9 years, his further appointment should be subject
to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders. Mr. Lui
continues to demonstrate his attributes to provide an independent
view to the Company’s matters. The Board is of the opinion that Mr.
Lui remains independent, notwithstanding his length of tenure, and
believes that his detailed knowledge of the Group’s businesses and
his external experience continue to be of significant benefit to the
Company. The Board is of the view that Mr. Lui is able to fulfil his roles
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company and would
recommend him for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The Company considers that all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

The Board schedules four meetings a year at approximately quarterly
intervals and will be met as necessary. During the year ended 30 April
2013, the Board held 16 meetings, of which 4 are regular meetings.
The Directors can attend meetings in persons or through other means
of electronic communication in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association. Notice of at least 14 days is given of a regular
Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. The
following table shows the attendance of individual Directors at the
meetings held during the year:
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Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
General Meeting Board Meetings
entitled entitled
to attend to attend
Name of Directors EZ % HE/ BRLE HE/ BRLE
(From 1 May 2012 to 30 April 2013) (ZZ——FRA—HE_T—ZFNA=+HBHH) BRRAEHE Exee3HE
Chan Wing Hang fRikiE 2/3 15/16
Chiu Chi Kong (appointed on 20 September 2012) #ER (R =-F——FAF =+ HZT) 1/2 6/9
Dai Yumin HEH 1/3 14/16
Gao Gunter (resigned on 6 August 2012) BHE (RZE—=F/\A~NHEF) N/A i 2/4
Jin Yan (appointed on 6 August 2012 and SE (RZF—ZF/NANAZER 0/3 4/12
resigned on 9 May 2013) RoFE—=F7 ANHEF)
Lui Tin Nang EPN:7 2/3 15/16
Luo Xian Ping (resigned on 23 August 2012) BEY (R—F——F/\F=+=HFF) N/A i 4/6
Ma Long Hie 0/3 13/16
Pang Chung Fai Benny (appointed on YHhE (R -—E-—FEAH-HZE) 1/2 8/9
20 September 2012)
Sze Cheung Pang (resigned on 23 August 2012)  Hittlle (R =F——F /| =+ = HFL) N/A i 3/6
Sze Chin Hung (resigned on 6 August 2012) R (R=E——F /| ANHEFF) N/A i A 3/4
Wong Sai Hung gL 3/3 15/16
Yang Zhengguo 15 EE 0/3 15/16
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TEERHE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Board Composition and Board Practices (Cont’d)

According to the code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code, the chairman
should at least annually hold meeting with the non-executive directors
without the executive directors present. During the period between 1
May 2012 to 30 April 2013, the Chairman had held one meeting with
the non-executive Directors without the executive Director present.

Board papers are circulated at least 3 days before the Board
meetings to enable the Directors to make informed decisions on
matters to be raised at the Board meetings. In addition, the Company
has maintained a procedure for the Directors to seek independent
professional advice, in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense in discharging their duties to the Company. Moreover, the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
prepares minutes and keeps records of matters discussed and
decisions resolved at all Board meetings. The Company Secretary
also keeps the minutes, which are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

Continuing Professional Development

The Company Secretary is responsible to update the Board on
governance and regulatory matters.

Training will be given to newly appointed director to his individual
needs. This includes introduction to the Group activities, their
responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company will arrange and/or introduce some Director’s training
courses for them to develop and explore their knowledge and skills.
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GEEARE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Continuing Professional Development (Cont’d)

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the year
under review, all Directors participated in continuous professional
development and had provided the Company with records (if any) on
their participation. The individual training record of each Director for
the year ended 30 April 2013 is set out below.

Directors and Types of continuous professional development
programmes

Chan Wing Hang A B

Chiu Chi Kong (appointed on 20 September 2012) B

Dai Yumin A B, C

Gao Gunter (resigned on 6 August 2012) B

Lui Tin Nang B

Luo Xian Ping (resigned on 23 August 2012) B

Jin Yan (appointed on 6 August and B,C
resigned on 9 May 2013)

Ma Long B, C

Pang Chung Fai Benny A B
(appointed on 20 September 2012)

Sze Cheung Pang (resigned on 23 August 2012) B

Sze Chin Hung (resigned on 6 August 2012) B

Wong Sai Hung A B, C

Yang Zhengguo B, C

A attending seminars/meetings/forums/conferences/courses/workshops
organized by professional bodies or regulatories

B: reading journals/newsletters/seminar materials/publications/magazines

C: reading memoranda issued or materials provided by the Company

All information and materials aforesaid relating, but not limited to the
latest development of the GEM Listing Rules, other applicable legal
and regulatory matters as well as directors’ duties and responsibilities.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the
liabilities of the Directors that may arise out the corporate activities,
which has been complied with the CG Code. The insurance coverage
is reviewed on an annual basis.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Appointment, Election and Re-election

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by the
nomination committee. It reviews the profiles of the candidates
and makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
nomination and retirement of the Directors.

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
have entered into an appointment letter with the Company from
one to around two years. According to the Company'’s articles of
association, one-third of the Directors are required to retire from office
at each annual general meeting, provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once in every three years.
The Directors who will retire at the annual general meeting of the
Company shall be those appointed by the Board during the year and
those who have been longest in office since their last election or re-
election.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The following statement, which sets out the responsibilities for the
Directors in relation to the quarterly, interim and annual financial
statements.

Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements, and announcements
to Shareholders, the Directors aim to present a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.

Accounting Period

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements,
the Group uses appropriate accounting policies that are consistently
applied, and that all applicable accounting standards are followed.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards as promulgated by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent or detect
fraud and other irregularities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Appointment, Election and Re-election (Cont’d)
Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

During the year, the roles of the chairman of the Company (the
“Chairman”) and the chief executive officer of the Company (the “CEQ”)
were segregated and performed by different Directors. Dr. Gao Gunter
had been the Chairman before he tendered his resignation as Director
on 6 August 2012. Following Dr. Gao Gunter’s resignation, Mr. Wong
Sai Hung was appointed as the Chairman. Mr. Luo Xian Ping had
been the CEO until after he resigned from the role on 6 August 2012,
and since then, Mr Dai Yumin has been appointed as the CEO.
The segregation of duties ensures a clear distinction between the
Chairman and the CEO responsibilities which allows a balance of
power between the Board and the management of the Group, and
ensures their independence and accountability. There is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship between the
Chairman and the CEO.

Either Dr. Gao Gunter or Mr. Wong Sai Hung, as the Chairman during
the year, has overall responsibilities for providing leadership, vision
and direction in the development of the business of the Company. He
ensures that:

° the Board functions effectively, and that all key and appropriate
issues are properly briefed and discussed by the Board in a
timely manner;

° the responsibilities for drawing up the agenda for each Board
meeting and, where appropriate, taking into account any
matters proposed by each Director for inclusion in the agenda;

° good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established and encourages all Directors to make full and active
participation to the affairs of the Group; and

° the Board acts in the best interests of the Group.

Either Mr. Luo Xian Ping or Mr. Dai Yumin, as the CEO during the year,
was responsible for the day-to-day management of the business of
the Group, attended to formulation and successful implementation
of policies, and assumed full accountability to the Board for all
operations of the Group. Working with the management team of
each core business division, he ensures the smooth operations and
development of the Group. He maintained a continuing dialogue with
the Chairman and all Directors to keep them fully informed of all major
business developments and issues.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that
the Board procedures are followed and for ensuring that the Board
is fully briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments and that it has regarded to them when making
decisions. The Company Secretary is also directly responsible for the
Group’s compliance with the continuing obligations of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases,
Companies Ordinance, Securities and Futures Ordinance and other
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Company Secretary, Ms. Chan Yim is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. According to
Rule 5.15 of GEM Listing Rules, in each financial year an issuer’s
company secretary must take no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training. During the financial year, the Company Secretary
has complied with the rule by participating over 15 hours of relevant
training courses and seminars.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

According to code provision A.5 of the CG Code, the Company has
to set up a nomination committee with a majority of the members
thereof being independent non-executive Directors. The nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) has been
established on 22 July 2005 with written terms of reference which
was revised on 15 March 2012 in compliance with the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a
year. On 6 August 2012, due to the resignation of Mr. Sze Chin Hung
as independent non-executive Director, Mr. Sze Chin Hung ceased
to be the chairman of the Nomination Committee, and the Board
redesignated Mr. Lui Tin Nang as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. All Nomination Committee members, with the exception
of Dr. Gao Gunter (resigned on 6 August 2012), are independent
non-executive Directors. Following the nomination of Mr. Chiu
Chin Kong and Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny as the members of the
Nomination Committee on 20 September 2012, the total members
of the Nomination Committee are four, and all are independent non-
executive Directors. The quorum necessary for the transaction of
business is two.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The principal
functions of the Nomination Committee include:

° to make recommendations to the Board on all new
appointments or re-appointments of Directors, the establishment
of a succession plan for Directors, in particular the Chairman
and the chief executive and the composition of the Board;

° to identify and nominate qualified individuals, subject to the
approval of the Board, to be additional Directors or to fill
vacancy in the Board as and when they arise;
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

° to assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the
contribution by each Director to the Board;

° to review the Board structure, size, composition and diversity
as well as the independent element of the Board on an annual
basis and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° to develop the criteria for selection of Directors; and

° to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee will report to the Board
on its proceedings and recommendations after each meeting.

During the year ended 30 April 2013, four meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held to review and recommend the structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board, assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors and make recommendation
to the Board relating to the renewal services of independent non-
executive Directors and non-executive Directors. The following table
shows the attendance of individual Directors at the meeting of the
Nomination Committee held during the year:
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Attendance/

Number of

Meetings

entitled

to attend

Name of Nomination Committee Members 2 £ ZEGHEH % HE/ BRLE
(From 1 May 2012 to 30 April 2013) (ZE— R A—BZE-F—=FMA =1+ RHH) EELE G
Chan Wing Hang [ NE 4/4
Chiu Chi Kong (appointed on 20 September 2012) HEN (R=FE—ZFNA-THEZF) N/A TNEF
Gao Gunter (chairman, resigned on 6 August 2012) wEHE (FE  RZFE-—ZF/VANAFT) 0/2
Lui Tin Nang (appointed as the chairman on 6 August 2012) AxREE (R=FE——F\ANAEZFBLE) 4/4
Pang Chung Fai Benny (appointed on 20 September 2012) T (R-FE——FNHA=1THEZE) N/A TNEF
Sze Chin Hung (resigned on 6 August 2012) R (R=E—ZF /NN HFT) 2/2

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has to set up a
remuneration committee with a majority of the members thereof being
independent non-executive Directors. The remuneration committee of
the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) has been established
on 22 July 2005 with written terms of reference which was revised on
15 March 2012 in compliance with the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

All Remuneration Committee members, with the exception of Dr. Gao
Gunter, are independent non-executive Directors. During the year, the
Remuneration Committee was chaired by Mr. Chan Wing Hang. On 6
August 2012, Dr. Gao Gunter and Mr. Sze Chin Hung were resigned
from the members of the Remuneration Committee and following the
nomination of Mr. Chiu Chin Kong and Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny
as the members of the Remuneration Committee on 20 September
2012, the total members of the Remuneration Committee are four,
and all are independent non-executive Directors. The quorum
necessary for the transaction of business is two.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The principal
functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

° to assist the Board in achieving its objective of attracting,
retaining and motivating people of the highest caliber and
experience needed to shape and execute strategy across the
Company’s substantial, diverse and international business
operations;

° to recommend a fair and transparent framework of executive
remuneration for the Board and senior management of the
Company, including share option scheme, based on the
skill, knowledge, involvement in the Company’s affairs and
by reference to the Company’s performance and profitability,
as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions;

o to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits-in-kind, pension rights, and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
the non-executive Directors; and

° to administer the performance bonus scheme and the share
option scheme for the employees of the Company.

No Directors can determine their own remuneration package. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee will report to the Board
on its proceedings and recommendations after each meeting. In
developing remuneration policies and making recommendation as
to the remuneration of the Directors and senior management, the
Remuneration Committee takes into account of the corporate goals
and objectives of the Group as well as the performance of those
individual Directors and senior management.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

The remuneration package of Directors and senior management

includes the following:

(@) Basic salary

The basic salary (inclusive of statutory employer contributions to
Provident Fund) for each Executive Director/senior management
is recommended by the Remuneration Committee, taking into
account the performance of the individual, the inflation price
index and information from independent sources on the rates
of salary for similar jobs in a selected group of comparable
organisations.

Fees

(b)

Fees paid/payable to the Executive Directors are determined
by the Board after considering the corporate and individual’'s
relative performance against the comparable organisations.
The fees paid/payable to the Non-Executive Directors takes
into account factors such as effort and time spent, and
responsibilities of these Directors.

(c) Bonus scheme

The Group operates a bonus scheme for all employees,
including the Executive Directors and senior management.
The criteria for the scheme is the level of profit achieved from
certain aspects of the Group’s business activities against
targets, together with an assessment of corporate and
individual’s performance during the year. Bonuses payable to
the Executive Directors/senior management are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board to ensure
alignment of their interests with those of Shareholders.

Benefits in kind

(@)

Other customary benefits (such as private medical cover) are
made available as appropriate.

(e) Directors’ share options

The Group operates a share option scheme for participants,
including senior management, employees, suppliers and
customers. The terms of the scheme and the movement in
Directors’ share options during the financial year ended 30 April
2013 are set out in note 35 to the financial statements. No
share options were granted, outstanding, lapsed, cancelled or
exercised at any time during the year ended 30 April 2013.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to the Directors by the
Company in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company. Remuneration packages of Mr. Wong Sai Hung, Mr. Yang
Zhengguo, Mr Ma Long, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Chan Wing Hang
had been revised and changed since 1 October 2012. The amounts
paid to each Director for the year ended 30 April 2013 are set out in
note 9 to the financial statements.

During the year ended 30 April 2013, four meetings of the
Remuneration Committee were held to review the remuneration
package of the Board and the senior management. The following
table shows the attendance of individual Directors at the meeting of
the Remuneration Committee held during the year:
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Name of Remuneration Committee Members S ZE €K 8% & HE/ BRLE
(From 1 May 2012 to 30 April 2013) (ZE— SR A—HE_T—ZFNA=+HHH) EELE G
Chan Wing Hang (chairman) BRoXE () 4/4
Chiu Chi Kong (appointed on 20 September 2012) HEN (R=FE——FNA-THEZHF) N/A @R
Gao Gunter (resigned on 6 August 2012) e (R-E——FNANAFE) 0/2
Lui Tin Nang EPNG 4/4
Pang Chung Fai, Benny (appointed on 20 September 2012) CHE (RZFE——FNHA=1THEZE) N/A TNEF
Sze Chin Hung (resigned on 6 August 2012) R (R=E——F/VANHFE) 2/2

AUDIT COMMITTEE

According to the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has to establish
an audit committee comprising at least three members who must
be non-executive directors only, and the majority thereof must be
independent non-executive directors, at least one of whom must
have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company established an audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”) on 4 July 2001 with written terms
of reference which was revised on 15 March 2012 in compliance with
the CG Code. The revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. During the year, the Audit Committee was chaired by Mr.
Lui Tin Nang. After the resignation of Mr. Sze Chin Hung on 6 August
2012, and following the appointment of Mr. Chiu Chi Kong and Mr.
Pang Chung Fai Benny as independent non-executive directors
and members of audit committee on 20 September 2012, the total
members of the the Audit Committee are four, and all are independent
non-executive Directors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

The major duties of the Audit Committee include:

° to consider and recommend the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditors;

° to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditors, any questions of resignation or dismissal of
external auditors;

° to review and monitor external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

° to discuss with external auditors the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

° to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditors to supply non-audit services and to make
recommendations on any measures for improvements to be
taken;

° to review the quarterly, interim and annual financial statements
and the quarterly, interim and annual reports before submission
to the Board, focusing particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i)  major judgmental areas;
(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting principles and standards;
and

(v  compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

° to review the Group’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems and ensure that the management has
performed its duty to have an effective internal control system;

° to consider major investigations findings on internal control

matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

° to review the internal audit programme, ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

° to review the external auditors’ management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditors to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response and to ensure that the Board will
provide a timely response to the issues raised; and

° to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate into any
matter under the scope of its duties and the authority to obtain
independent professional advice. It is given full access to and
assistance from the management and reasonable resources to
discharge its duties properly.

During the year ended 30 April 2013, the Audit Committee has
met once with the external auditors without the presence of the
management.

The Group’s quarterly results for the three months ended 31 July
2012, six months ended 31 October 2012, nine months ended
31 January 2013 and audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 April 2013 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

During the year ended 30 April 2013, four meetings of the Audit
Committee were held to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and internal control of the Group. The following table shows
the attendance of individual Directors at the meetings of the Audit
Committee held during the year:
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Meetings

entitled

to attend

Name of Audit Committee Members BZZE €K EH#E i/ BRELE
(From 1 May 2012 to 30 April 2013) (ZE——FRA—HE-ZE—=FNA=1+HHH) gR8E
Chan Wing Hang BRoxfE 4/4
Chiu Chi Kong (appointed on 20 September 2012) HEN (R=FE—ZFENA=ZTHEZHF) 2/2
Lui Tin Nang (chairman) axEE (F/E) 4/4
Pang Chung Fai Benny (appointed on 20 September 2012) YHE (R -E— N HEZE) 2/2
Sze Chin Hung (resigned on 6 August 2012) MRk (R -F——F /| HFIE) 1/1
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

Full minutes of the Audit Committee are kept by the Company
Secretary. Draft and finalised minutes of the Audit Committee
meetings are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee
for their comments and records respectively, in both cases within
reasonable time after the conclusion of the meetings.

Auditor’s Remuneration

An amount of HK$420,000 (2012: HK$400,000) was charged to the
Group’s for the year ended 30 April 2013 for the auditing services by
BDO Limited, the existing auditor of the Company who was appointed
on 13 December 2010. There is no non-audit services provided by
BDO Limited during the years ended 30 April 2012 and 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

According to code provision D.3 of the CG Code, the Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of the
Company in accordance with the written terms of reference adopted
by the Board on 15 March 2012. The Board shall have the following
duties and responsibilities for performing the corporate governance
duties of the Company:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

o to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
and disclosure in the corporate governance report in annual
report of the Company.

During the year, the Board has performed the above corporate
governance functions through discussion in the Board meeting and
by reviewing the Company’s policies and practices from time to time
in accordance with the legal and regulatory issues.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERHE

INTERNAL CONTROL AND GROUP RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s system of
internal control includes a defined management structure with limits of
authority, is designed to help the achievement of business objectives,
safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication, and ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations. The system is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group’s
objectives.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted reviews of
the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control. The Board,
through the review of the Audit Committee, based on the discussions
with the external auditors and base on the report prepared by the
internal auditor of the Company, is satisfied that the Group has fully
complied with the Code Provisions on internal controls during the
year under review as set forth in the CG Code.

Organisational Structure and Reporting System

An organisational structure with operating policies and procedures,
lines of responsibility and delegated authority has been established.
A comprehensive monthly management reporting is in place.
The Division/Department Heads of each core business division is
accountable for the conduct and performance of each business in the
division within the agreed strategies, which are set by themselves and
the Board together, and report directly to the Board.

Authority and Control

The relevant executive Directors and senior management are
delegated with respective levels of authorities with regard to key
corporate strategy and policy and contractual commitments.
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TEERME

CODES AND POLICIES

Securities Dealing Code

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions as set out in the GEM Listing Rules as the
required standard for securities transactions by the Directors. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, each of the Directors, has
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standards of
dealings regarding securities transaction by the Directors as set out
on the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 30 April 2013.

Code of Ethics

The Company adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to the
Company'’s principal executive officer and senior financial officers
in the conduct and practice of financial management and lays
down the key principles that they shall follow and advocate, which
include honest and ethical conduct; full, fair, accurate, timely and
understandable disclosure; compliance with the GEM Listing Rules
and accounting standards and regulations; prompt internal reporting;
and accountability for adherence to the code. The Code of Ethics is
also intended to promote the well-being of the all employees, officers
and Directors in the workplace, and advocate high standards of
professional conduct and work performance.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT

The Company values communication with Shareholders and
investors. The Company uses two-way communication channels to
account to Shareholders and investors for the performance of the
Company. Enquiries and suggestions from Shareholders or investors
are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders may be put to the
Board through the following channels to the Company Secretary:

1. By mail to the Company’s head office at Suites 3101-5,
31/F., Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong;

2. By telephone at telephone number (852) 3966 8388;

3. By fax at fax number (852) 2802 0026; or

4. By email at info@bmregeneration.com
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERHE

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT (Cont’d)

The Company uses a number of formal communications channels
to account to Shareholders and investors for the performance of the
Company. These include (i) the publication of quarterly, interim and
annual reports; (i) the annual general meeting or extraordinary general
meeting providing a forum for Shareholders to raise comments and
exchanging views with the Board; (jii) updated and key information
of the Group available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company; (iv) the Company’s website offering communication
channel between the Company and its Shareholders and investors;
and (v) the Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong serving the
Shareholders in respect of all share registration matters.

The Company aims to provide its Shareholders and investors with
high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The Board
is committed to provide clear, detailed, timely manner and on a
regular basis information of the Group to Shareholders through the
publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports and/or dispatching
circular, notices, and other announcements.

The Company strives to take into consideration its shareholders’
views and inputs, and address Shareholders’ concerns. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend the annual general meeting for which at
least 20 clear business days’ notice is given. The Chairman as well
as chairmen of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee, or in their absence, the Directors
are available to answer Shareholders’ questions on the Group’s
businesses at the meeting. To comply with code provision E.1.2 of the
CG Code, the management will ensure the external auditors to attend
the annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence. All Shareholders have
statutory rights to call for extraordinary general meetings and put
forward agenda items for consideration by Shareholders.

According to the Company’s articles of association, general meetings
shall be convened on the written requisition of any two or more
Shareholders deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. General
meetings may also be convened on the written requisition of any one
member of the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company. The poll will be conducted by
the share registrar of the Company and the results of the poll are
published on the Stock Exchange’s website.
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TEERME

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
RIGHT (Cont’d)

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for

election as a Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit
a written notice (the “Notice”) at the Company’s head office in

Hong Kong at Suites 3101-5, 31/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre,
108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Notice (i) must
include the personal information of the Candidate as required by
Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules and his/her contact details;

and (i) must be signed by the Shareholder concerned including the

information/documents to verify the identity of the Shareholder and

signed by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected
and consent of publication of his/her personal data. The period for

lodgement of the Notice shall commence no earlier than the day

after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such

meeting. In order to ensure the Shareholders have sufficient time to
receive and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate as a
Director without adjourning the general meeting, Shareholders are
urged to submit and lodge the Notice as soon as practicable, say

at least 15 business days prior to the date of the general meeting
appointed for such election.

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy
on 15 March 2012 and will review it on a regular basis to ensure

its effectiveness to comply with the code provision E.1.4 of the CG
Code.

In order to promote effective communication, the Company also

maintains a website (www.bmregeneration.com) which include the
latest information relating to the Group and its businesses.
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Directors’ Report

EEEHmE

The Directors present to the Shareholders the Company’s annual
report and audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 April 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are the provision of tissue engineering
products.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2013 are set out in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 51.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 124.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

The Company reserves available for distribution to Shareholders as
at 30 April 2013 amounted to approximately HK$578,588,000 (2012:
HK$274,249,000).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 54 and note 32 to the financial statements,
respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.
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EETHE

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Dai Yumin

(Chief Executive Officer)
Wang Yurong
Gao Gunter (Chairman)

Luo Xian Ping
(Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Deng Shaoping (Chairman)

Wong Sai Hung
(Vice Chairman)

Yang Zhengguo

Ma Long
Wang Jianjun

Jin Yan

Sze Cheung Pang

(appointed on 9 May 2013)
(resigned on 6 August 2012)

(resigned on 23 August 2012)

(appointed on 9 May 2013)

(re-designated as Chairman
and executive director
on 6 August 2012 and
23 August 2012, respectively;
re-designated as non-executive
director on 30 April 2013; and
re-designated as Vice Chairman
on 9 May 2013)

(re-designated as non-executive
director on 9 May 2013)

(appointed on 9 May 2013)

(appointed on 6 August 2012 and
resigned on 9 May 2013)

(resigned on 23 August 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Lui Tin Nang

Chan Wing Hang

Chiu Chi Kong

Pang Chung Fai Benny

Sze Chin Hung

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Ma Long, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Chan Wing Hang
shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general

(appointed on 20 September 2012)

(appointed on 20 September 2012)

(resigned on 6 August 2012)

meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with article 99 of the Company’s articles of association,
Ms. Wang Yurong, Prof. Deng Shaoping and Mr. Wang Jianjun shall
hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited Annual Report 2013

)

REAREEAREBR EZEENT ¢

HITEE

BEW

(7T #8%%)

B (R=—ZE—=FHAANE
ERT)

SE (£E) (R=—Z——%)\A/"H
BiL)

F (7TEAEE) (R_T—=F

NAZ+=HEE)

FEITESE

WA (&) (R=E—=FRAANR

EZRT)

=it (5/EE) (DRIR=E—=4F
NARNBR-ZE—Z—F
NAZ+=RAFA
FERPITES
N-ZE—=FM/B=+H
uﬂﬁi%;ll%%ﬂﬂ§$ ®

—=FRANA

BEAEE

BT (R=Z2—=%#RANA

e BEAFNTES)

my B

TE (R=2—=%#TANA
BE(T)

e (R=F——®/\AXH
BEARR-T—=4F
7 AL H BHE)

HERE IS (R=—F——%
B =+=A#HE)

BUFBITEE

B X4

EENE

7 (R=Z—=fFNA=+A
BET)

ZhiE (R—Z——FNA=+A
BEE)

oI B (R=Z—=#\AXA
BHT)

REARREBERMAE 16K FELE
B K AE T A M BROKAE 5t A A I R JE R ﬁiﬁ?';}
FRESR  ENEERTREEREE

RBEANRBEMBERARNE QMK - TEHRL
WATHELRITRERLEREERERRES
Re  HENAERLMBEEEET -



Directors’ Report

EEEHmE

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out on
pages 12 to 17 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Dai Yumin has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial term of two years commencing from 24 March
2009, renewable for successive terms of one year, unless and until
terminated by either party serving not less than three months’ notice
in writing to the other.

Ms. Wang Yurong has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial term of two year commencing from 9 May
2013 renewable for successive terms of one year, unless and until
terminated by either party serving not less than three months’ notice
in writing to the other.

Each of Prof. Deng Shaoping and Mr. Wang Jianjun has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company for a term commencing from
9 May 2013 to 8 May 2015 to act as a non-executive Director.

Mr. Wong Sai Hung has entered into a new appointment letter with
the Company for a further term commencing from 23 June 2012 to
31 July 2014 to act as a non-executive Director.

Mr. Yang Zhengguo has entered into a new appointment letter with
the Company for a term commencing from 9 May 2013 to 8 May
2015 to act as a non-executive Director.

Mr. Ma Long has entered into a new appointment letter with the
Company for a further term commencing from 11 March 2012 to 10
March 2014 to act as a non-executive Director.

Mr. Lui Tin Nang has entered into a new appointment letter with the
Company for another one year commencing from 30 September
2012 to continue to act as an Independent Non-executive Director.

Mr. Chan Wing Hang has entered into a new appointment letter with
the Company for a further term commencing from 9 August 2012 to
31 July 2013 to act as an independent non-executive Director.

Each of Mr. Chiu Chi Kong and Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny has
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for a term of
one year commencing from 20 September 2012 to 19 September
2013 to act as an independent non-executive Director.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as those set out in note 37 to the financial statements, none
of the Directors had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were the rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or chief executive
of the Company or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights or benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 30 April 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)),
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”), or to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (Cont’d)

Long Positions

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

EENEZ 2= (&)
o
KRR FR G RATBEIR 15> s

Approximate
percentage of

Aggregate long
position in the

shares and the issued

Name of Directors Capacity underlying shares share capital

B3 R B R 5 B RITRA

EEgE 514 BEZHAE BHABEDE

Dai Yumin Held by controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,685,320,319 18.70%
BSH MR EEREA (1)

Wong Sai Hung Beneficial owner 30,000,000 0.33%

= EnEBA
Note:

1. All Favour Holdings Limited is beneficially owned as to (i) 40% by
Forerunner Technology Limited and 20% by Honour Top Holdings
Limited which in turn were wholly-owned by Mr. Dai Yumin, an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company; and (i) 40%
by Mr. Hu Yonggang, respectively. By virtue of the SFO the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
Mr. Dai Yumin and Mr. Hu Yonggang are deemed to be interested in
1,685,320,319 shares of the Company held by All Favour Holdings
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executives
of the Company had, as at 30 April 2013, any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Subsequent to 30 April 2013, Ms. Wang Yurong was appointed as an
executive Director on 9 May 2013, who is deemed to be interested in
1,200,000,000 Shares held by China Sheng Rong Investment Holding
Limited (see Note 2 below).

1. 2 ¥8 12 A% A IR A 7] B (i) Forerunner Technology
Limited ® = # & 40% K& Honour Top Holdings
Limited Bz ¥ 20% * i Forerunner Technology
Limited K Honour Top Holdings Limited 57 2A
AIITESRTREBRBEFEEZEERE ; (i)
KRB RS 40% © RIFE SRS K0
(BEEDIES7T1E) - BESLEREAXNILEE
WR AN BEEERER A FFT#E1,685,320,319
MRANA IR R A A o

R EXFrREIN R-T—=FWA=1TH" R
BEAEEFHARAEBITHRABRARAHE
EREBEE (E&EREHRHEEHIEXVED)
ZBtn - MR MBS A AREE 5 R
ERPIEXVERE 7 M8 #R M &A1& AR A J B 52
Frztgmsox e (BREEFRER 7B G
ZBBIGRXEEFREERA 2 ERRR) » K
JARCERIN AN R AR IR RE 75 M A B 15 B 55 352 15 AR
EFEzELH  SRBFETAMBENEAR
Bl MR P2 BERR SRR
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SHARE OPTIONS

On 14 September 2011, the share option scheme which was
adopted by the Company on 29 August 2002 (the “2002 Share
Option Scheme”) was terminated and a new share option scheme (the
“2011 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to directors and eligible employees of the
Company.

No share options were granted, outstanding, lapsed, cancelled or
exercised at any time during the year ended 30 April 2018.

The summary of the 2011 Share Option Scheme are set out in note
35 to the financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 April 2013, other than the interests and short positions of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company disclosed above,
persons or companies who had interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company, which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or be directly or indirectly
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances of general meetings
of the Company or substantial shareholders as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in shares

B

RIB——FNAA THEER SRR _FF
NAZ TN BEmRA 2 BRESE ([ —FT =
RS E]) RIEWRAFBRAEET S ([=F
——FERETE] ) TBENTIREARRES
REEREBRREER -

REE_Z-—=FOA=+HILFE HERH
EABR RSN EMREABRERRTE 2
R EERTITRE -

T FEREF SN ESR NI RERE
35 °

FERR

R-ZT—=FMAB=+H " %ti%ﬁ%%%i
AAREBITRABZEZRARIN  RAR
Bt - AERERR D R EHEE $%ﬁmmﬁh%&%
EIEPIEXVEE 2 M 3D MIEX B A D AIFEZ
BRIAR  NEESHEERNEETMAEBERT
ARARRIKEBREZRERAREG EIREZEF
AT BN R B 5% 3 A £ (IR A D BB &
BERIEIEFIE I IEFEE 2 BT EE)
AR AL ARMT ¢

B ZHE

Aggregate long
position in the

Approximate
percentage of

shares and the issued

Name of Shareholders Capacity underlying shares share capital

PR 45 2 #E BE AR 47 BEITRAE

RERHKEE g4 Btz R BMAOBDL

All Favour Holdings Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1 above) 1,685,320,319 18.70%
PEERARA BEmBEAA (EXWF1)

China Sheng Rong Beneficial owner (Note 2) 1,200,000,000 13.32%

Investment Holding Limited EmEB A (ix2)

TERBREZRARA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d)

Long positions in shares (Cont’d)
Note:

2s China Sheng Rong Investment Holding Limited was beneficially owned
as to (i) 51% by Mr. Guan Baker Guo Liang; and (i) 49% by Ms. Wang
Yurong, an executive Director. Mr. Guan Baker Guo Liang and Ms.
Wang Yurong are spouses. By virtue of the SFO the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Ms. Wang
and Mr. Guan are deemed to be interested in 1,200,000,000 Shares
held by China Sheng Rong Investment Holding Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and the chief executives of
the Company are not aware that there is any party who, as at the
year ended 30 April 2013, had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company, which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO or be directly or indirectly interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances of general meetings of the Company or
substantial shareholders as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 14 August 2012, the Company and CCB International Capital
Limited (the “Placing Agent”) entered into a placing agreement (the
“2012 Placing Agreement”) pursuant to which the Placing Agent has
conditionally agreed to procure on a best-effort basis placee(s) to
subscribe for an aggregate of up to 455,000,000 placing shares at
a placing price of HK$0.22 per placing share (the “2012 Placing”).
On the same date, the Placing Agent has agreed to place and All
Favour Holdings Limited (“All Favour”) has agreed to subscribe
for 455,000,000 placing shares at a placing price of HK$0.22 per
placing share, subject only to the 2012 Placing Agreement becoming
unconditional in accordance with the terms thereof.

On 24 January 2013, the Company and the Placing Agent entered
into another placing agreement (the “2013 Placing Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Placing Agent has agreed to act as the
placing agent for the conditional placing of an aggregate of up to
1,500,000,000 placing shares at a placing price of HK$0.165 per
placing share (the “2013 Placing Share(s)”) on a best-effort basis (the
“20183 Placing”). On the same date, the Placing Agent has agreed
to place and All Favour has agreed to subscribe for 500,000,000
placing shares at a placing price of HK$0.165 per placing share,
subject only to the 2013 Placing Agreement becoming unconditional
in accordance with the terms thereof.

FTERR (&)
Rty z 47 E (#8)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

As at 14 August 2012 and 24 January 2013, All Favour was indirectly
owned as to 53.33% by Mr. Dai Yumin, an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company, and a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and was therefore a connected person
of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules. Both transactions
with All Favour under 2012 Placing and the 2013 Placing constitute
connected transactions for the Company under GEM Listing Rules
and were subject to the approval of the independent shareholders
of the Company. The resolution approving the transactions was
duly passed by the independent shareholders of the Company at
the extraordinary general meeting held on 19 September 2012 and
3 April 2013 respectively.

Details of the transactions were disclosed in the Company’s circular
dated 4 September 2012 and 13 March 2013 respectively.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in
note 35 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders or the
substantial shareholders of the Company, or any of their respective
associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest
in a business that competes or may compete with the business of the
Group.

China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited Annual Report 2013
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 99% of the Group’s total turnover for the year. In
particular, sales to the largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 98% of the Group’s total turnover for the year.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 67% of the Group’s total purchases for the year. In
particular, purchases from the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 24% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company, their associates (as defined in
the GEM Listing Rules) or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of
the directors of the Company own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interests in the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company maintains a high standard of corporate governance
practices. Details of the corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 18 to 38. The Directors believe the long term financial
performance as opposed to short term rewards is a corporate
governance objective. The Board would not take undue risks to make
short term gains at the expense of long term objectives.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
GEM Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Directors the written confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company, based on
such confirmations, considers all of the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an audit committee (“the Audit Committee”)
on 4 July 2001 with written terms of reference which was revised on

15 March 2012 in compliance with the CG Code for the purposes

of reviewing and providing supervision over the financial reporting
process and internal controls of the Group. The Audit Committee of
the Company is chaired by Mr. Lui Tin Nang and comprises three
other members namely, Mr. Chan Wing Hang, Mr. Chiu Chi Kang
and Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny. All the Audit Committee members
are independent non-executive Directors. The Audit Committee has

reviewed and discussed with the management and the external

auditors financial reporting matters including the annual results for the
year ended 30 April 2013.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 April

2010 were audited by Grant Thornton (“GTHK”), now known as JBPB
& Co. Due to a merger of business of GTHK and BDO Limited (“BDO”)

to practise in the name of BDO, GTHK resigned and BDO was
appointed as auditors of the Company effective from 13 December

2010. The financial statements of the Company for the years ended

30 April 2011, 2012 and 2013 were audited by BDO. A resolution
will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company to re-appoint BDO as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dai Yumin
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19 July 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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|IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
EE 1 +85222188288 FAETHEEP11158
{#H : +8522815 2239 Jk&LrI>2548

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA BIO-MED REGENERATION TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
FEEYBEEENFERAE

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 51 to 123, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 30 April 2013, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Cont’d)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence

about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order

to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating

the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and

fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at

30 April 2013 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Li Wing Yin

Practising Certificate Number PO5035

Hong Kong, 19 July 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e ZHEWARR

For the year ended 30 April 2013 HZ2—ZE—=FWMA=1+H I FE

2013 2012
—E—=£F -
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FET F& 7T
Revenue Wz 5 1,377 128
Cost of sales SHE Z KA (1,615) (85)
Gross (loss)/profit £ (F58) /7 (238) 43
Other income Eablg A 6,788 2,070
Administrative expenses THFAX (74,230) (69,685)
Operating loss BEER (67,680) (67,572)
Finance costs BB ER 7 (1,694) (1,540)
Loss before income tax BrRATB R AIEE 8 (69,374) (69,112)
Income tax credit FriSiiik & 11 1,890 970
Loss for the year AEFEEEIE (67,484) (68,142)
Other comprehensive income HiZ2mEBA
Exchange gain on translation REGINETE I TR
of financial statements of foreign operations 2 [& 5 2% 3,605 2,138
Total comprehensive income for the year ZAEEZEKA (63,879) (66,004)
Loss for the year attributable to: DTATEEFEEESE :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NSIEZ SN 12 (61,320) (57,109)
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR AR SR i (6,164) (11,033)
(67,484) (68,142)
Total comprehensive income LTALEEZE
attributable to: PNt
Owners of the Company RAREEA (57,612) (55,051)
Non-controlling interests JEFE AR A SR AE = (6,267) (10,953)
(63,879) (66,004)
Loss per share for loss attributable EATEBEAENRER
to owners of the Company ZEBREE 14
— basic (HK cents) — &7 (1) (0.828) (0.809)
— diluted (HK cents) — #58 (B4L) N/A 38 A N/A N

2013 FHFH PELEVBEBENRERLF
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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nVT\
As at 30 April 2018 RZE—=FMHA=+H
2013 2012
=5 —E—_F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
F5E FET F&T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREME
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment E RN 15 130,577 118,089
Land use rights and operating lease bR FARE &
prepayments LB ETE R 16 5,162 5,157
Investment property wEMZE 17 - 1,015
Goodwill 5k 20 141,310 141,310
Other intangible assets Hn M\ &= 21 164,437 179,247
Debt element of convertible bond AIBRES 2 BB 5N 22 4,261 =
445,747 444,818
Current assets REEE
Inventories 5 23 509 704
Trade receivables FEWE 5 8R1E 24 26 23
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &% - F{T3IE K&
H b pE Y BR 1A 24 34,574 15,042
Options embedded in the convertible bond AR A% < Nk AT 22 2 =
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEEAR 25 272,327 39,700
307,438 55,469
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FERE SRR 26 834 3,671
Accrued charges and other payables FERTE R K E A e AR IR 27 57,286 76,921
Amounts due to non-controlling interests FEASTBT /BB A A IEFEAR
of subsidiaries Hx%% L] 28 6,889 7,729
Bank borrowings RITEK 29 37,980 37,125
Provision for taxation TIBRE — 975
102,989 126,421
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE/ (AfF) FE 204,449 (70,952)
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBER 650,196 373,866
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Deferred taxation IRAEFI IR 30 19,278 21,208
Net assets BEEFE 630,918 352,658
EQUITY =
Share capital LN 31 90,119 70,569
Reserves G 532,313 267,368
Equity attributable to owners ARARFEE AEL
of the Company R 622,432 337,937
Non-controlling interests FERBERER 8,486 14,721
Total equity mrER 630,918 352,658
Director Director
EEa EFE

China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited Annual Report 2013



Statement of Financial Position

BRI R

As at 30 April 2013 R=ZE—=FMA=+H

2013 2012
—E—=fF ST E
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M FET FETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREME
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - B MR 15 - 14
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZRE 18 200 200
200 214
Current assets REEE
Deposits and prepayments E& KRB KA 2,636 2,289
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUH B A AR IE 19 497,280 356,832
Cash and cash equivalents Be MR EHEIEAR 25 183,222 113
683,138 359,234
Current liabilities REEE
Accrued charges and other payables FERT B R R E MR ARIR 1,258 1,252
Amount due to a subsidiary FETBT B A &) BUA 19 13,373 13,378
14,631 14,630
Net current assets RBEEFE 668,507 344,604
Net assets EEFRE 668,707 344,818
EQUITY Em
Share capital N 31 90,119 70,569
Reserves [ 32 578,588 274,249
Total equity mrER 668,707 344,818
Director Director
EE EZE

2013 FHFH PELEVBEBENRERLF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FARRBEE

FOA=THLFE

For the year ended 30 April 2013 HE —ZT—=

Non-
controlling
Attributable to owners of the Company interests Total
27
KLTREARLE hhzEs aif
Share Share  Translation Special Other  Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ke REEE  ARRE  GREE  ABRE  EHEE ait
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS /000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS 1000 HKS'000 HKS000
ThL Titn T Thn AL T THL TéL Tén
(note 31)
(Hits)
At 1 May 2011 N-E--%1f-H 70,569 384,801 6,740 (200) 33,169 (102,001) 392,988 5674 418,662
Loss for the year FERER S - - - - BTI09 Ti09 (11089 (68142
Other comprehensive income 030N
Exchange gan on franslaton of inancial HERhERER
Statements of foreign operafions LER N - - 2,068 - - - 2,058 80 2,138
Total comprehensive income for the year REERENAGE - - 2,058 - - B7109 (1) (10959 (66,004
At 30 April 2012 H-§-ZEMA=1A 70,569 384,801 8,798 200 33,169 (159,200) 337,937 14721 32,008
At 1 May 2012 R-E-Z51f-H 70,569 384,801 8,798 (200 33,169 (159,200) 337,937 14721 352,008
Loss on deemed acquisition of RENEEERRRER
non-contoling inerests ba 5 - - - - (3 - ) % -
Share ssued at premium HRERRG 19550 38050 - - - - 3780 - 3760
Shae Issue expense RREARL - b461) - - - - (5.461) = b,461)
Transactions with owners SERARG2RS 19550 302589 - - ) A A
Loss for the year FERER = = - - - B3 6130 b6y (67484
Other comprehensive income Bh2mRA
Exchang gain on tranglaton of fnanca ErEhES s
statements of foreign operations LB NE - - 3,708 - - - 3,708 (103) 3,605
Total comprehensive income for the year REERENALE - - 3,708 - - 61320 (7612 6267 (63879
At 30 April 2013 H-5-=EMA=1A 90,119 107,390 12,506 (200) 3,137 (220,520 622,432 8,486 630918
The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal kB EARAEER ST —FHAE - HIKE

value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued for their acquisition at the time of the

Group’s reorganisation in 2001.

The other reserve represents the difference between the fair value
of consideration paid to increase the shareholding in a subsidiary,
Shaanxi Aierfu Activtissue Engineering Company Limited, and the
amount of adjustment to non-controlling interests during the years

ended 30 April 2011 and 2013.

(RPN
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Il‘/j_\/\Iﬁrﬁ/)wE%

For the year ended 30 April 2013 &= ==

—ZHFOA=THLFE

2013 2012
—E—=fF -
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FHT F& 7T
Loss before income tax BRETIS TR R (69,374) (69,112)
Adjustments for: R -
Amortisation of land use rights TH AR EEE
and operating lease prepayments TE AT FRIEEE 55 110 108
Amortisation of other intangible assets E A& R 15,395 15,411
Depreciation e 3,135 2,203
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment property & & #% A F(E
WA (i) 209 (327)
Interest income FEMA (251) (1,633)
Imputed interest income on convertible bond ~ AJH# L&A 2 HE TS
KA (193) 3
Loss on disposals of property plant HEWE  BEREEZ
and equipment, net e (F58) 5 —
Change in fair value of derivatives —Hﬁ‘ﬁxfi%’ézmﬁl,ﬁﬂgﬂ’\]
embedded in convertible bond IFTEZ """"" 1) 730 —
Interest expenses T‘J SEA 1,694 1,640
Other payables and amounts due to FA 0 H b I AR T K2
non-controlling interests EA 7#% MR R
of subsidiaries waived MR (5,873) —
Other receivables written off Eo W R IE M SR 141 138
Operating loss before working BEEEeRBN2KEBR
capital changes (54,272) (51,672)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories BERL, (3Em) 195 (483)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables FEWE SERIE ($20) R (3) 3,119
(Increase)/Decrease in deposits, e - EfZREREM
prepayments and other receivables FEURRRTE (3500) R (19,673) 57,875
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables B ESRE Cfd) /1Em (2,837) 2,069
(Decrease)/Increase in accrued charges JERTE A R B ETARIE
and other payables Cmd) s (12,402) 11,343
Cash (used in)/generated from meEkis (8H) iz
operations B (88,992) 22,251
Income taxes paid BHHIE (1,015) -
Net cash (used in)/generated REEE (H) Fi38:
from operating activities FHE (90,007) 22,251

2013 FHFH PELEVBEBENRERLF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

For the year ended 30 April 2013 i Z2 —ZE—=FMWA=+H |- FZ

2013 2012
—E—=fF el =—%
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
0= FET F&T
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZ2RERE
Interest received B UHE 251 1,633
Subscription of convertible bond R ES 22 (4,800) —
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE  BENME&HE (11,164) (51,548)
Purchase of other intangible assets BEEMEREE - (1,208)
Acquisition of a subsidiary, Ui —FE B AR
net of cash acquired EkREWER S - 9,536
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets HERBEEEMNSNIE 38 —
Net cash used in investing activities RETEBFMEARSTE (15,675) (41,587)
Cash flows from financing activities AETH2RERE
Proceeds from shares issued BITIRID PTIS SRIA 347,600 -
Share issue expenses paid SR EITRY (5,461) =
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIERPTIE B 37,980 37,125
Repayments of bank borrowings ERBITERK (37,125) —
Decrease in amounts due to FETBRT B A B EEAR AR SR
non-controlling interests of subsidiaries W R IER D - (12,615)
Interest paid on bank borrowings BRITERZFIE (3,351) (1,893)
Other interest paid B A HALF) S (1,334) (1,540)
Net cash generated from RMETEHMEREFE
financing activities 338,309 21,077
Net increase in cash ReRkRBREEEERAZ
and cash equivalents B EREEIE 0 232,627 1,741
Cash and cash equivalents FzRERREEEER
at beginning of the year 39,700 37,959
Cash and cash equivalents FERzRERREEEER
at end of the year 272,327 39,700
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AR5 AR Y i

For the year ended 30 April 2013 HZ2—ZE—=FWMA=1+H I FE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law (Revision 2001) of Cayman Islands on 20 April 2001. The
address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, Cayman Island, KY1-1104 and its principal
place of business is Suites 3101-5, 31st Floor, Dah Sing
Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38. The
Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the
“Group” hereafter.

The financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2013 were
approved for issue by the board of directors on 19 July 2013.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements on pages 51 to 123 have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The financial
statements also include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been used
in the preparation of these financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.
The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the
impacts on the Group’s financial statements, if any, are
disclosed in note 3.

—RE#

FEAEYESFEREBERAA ([AA
All) RZZEE—FHA=-THIRERSH
SRAVE (ZET—FEIR) ERE/HS
MK AEREER AR - HMHEE
REEEZEME 2 ik 5 Bl & P.O. Box 309,
Ugland House, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islands, KY1-1104 R & E {45175 108
AR 031 3101-5F o AAAIK
MRBABHMERFFERAR ([HERFT] )
BIZEMR ([RIZEMR] ) k7T -

ARB—HEREERAR  HXEHBA
Al EEBEHNMIEESS » AR A R HM
BAR T XMMEA [REH] -

HE_Z-—=FMA=+RHILFEZHBKR
RER-_ZT-—=FtATHHESFSHE
TiE -

2.1 HEEE

HRNES1 B 123 B 2P BRRTIKE
EBVEMELER ([FEUBHREE
Al BEAEEGHMAE ([E5
grAIAE]) EH e EBERE
B IEREER - FAEGHEL KR
B MEE - - WBERERIDBEEEL
BMED 2 5 IR E M B R FT A R 5E
F AR ([RIZERETRA]) -

ANRENER B RERZEIEZGHEK
RERN T - REBINRESN - 1t
ERRCERERARNMBEZRFE -
RAFTRI BRI 2 BB B ImEE
AIREAREMBERR 2T E (WH)
THRHE 5E 3 A 5% o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AR5 AR Y A

For the year ended 30 April 2013 i Z2 —ZE—=FMWA=+H |- FZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

el

2.2

China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited Annual Report 2013

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for options embedded in the
convertible bond and investment property, which are
stated at fair value. The measurement bases are fully
described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in note 4.

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective dates of
acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

2. FESTHBREZE ()
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AR5 AR Y i

For the year ended 30 April 2013 &= == —

—FENA=THILFEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Business combination and basis of

consolidation (Cont’d)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit
or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

2. TESTHERBE (8)

22 EFEHRASHEE (&

WK B AR REBRKREETEA
B o WRERA TSI B IS8R 2
BE FMELAZBERARE (R
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% 5% B B 1R MR 05 2 U AL RE B
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@A BEAR BT ER - AKE R
BERXZEBRIFERBRRERD
NP ERZEERBBET AIBHAIEE
FEZ L OIF BRI R A - P
BEMIFER IR R ER DI QT ER
B RIFBBMBHRELUEZRS —
BArEEE . AR - HUEIERE
MR AR AN - BRIFEAEETT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AR5 AR Y A

For the year ended 30 April 2013 i Z2 —ZE—=FMWA=+H |- FZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2

2.3

China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited Annual Report 2013

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Cont’d)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed
of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company is
able to exercise control. Control is achieved where the
Company, directly or indirectly, has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that are presently exercisable are
taken into account.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of the subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

2. FESTHBREZE ()
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R M 5T
For the year ended 30 April 2013 B2 —E—=FM A/ =F+HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EZEEBREIZE (&)

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.4 Foreign currency translation 24 IMEHME

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the reporting
date retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HKS$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HKS at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income and expenses
have been converted into HK$ at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average rate over
the reporting period provided that the exchange rates do
not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from this
procedure have been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the translation
reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AR5 AR Y A

For the year ended 30 April 2013 &&= —

—=HMA=+AIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of the
leasehold land at the inception of the lease, and other
items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided
to write off the cost less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at
the following rates per annum:

Buildings over 50 years or the
terms of the leases,
whichever is shorter

Furniture and equipment 7%-25%
Computer equipment 33%
Motor vehicles 20%-25%

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AR5 AR Y i

For the year ended 30 April 2013 HZ2—ZE—=FWMA=1+H I FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

25

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment loss. Cost includes all
construction expenditure and other direct costs, including
interest costs, attributable to such projects. Cost on
completed construction works is transferred to the
appropriate asset category. No deprecation is provided in
respect of construction in progress until it is available for
use.

Land use rights and operating lease
prepayments

Upfront payments made to acquire land held under an
operating lease are stated at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
The determination if an arrangement is or contains a lease
and the lease is an operating lease is detailed in note 2.14.
Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line method
over the term of the lease/right of use except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time pattern
of benefits to be derived by the Group from use of the
land.

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale
in the ordinary course of business, use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Investment property is measured at cost on
initial recognition and subsequently at fair value with any
change therein recognised in profit or loss.

2. TESTHERBE (8)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 April 2013 i Z2 —ZE—=FMWA=+H |- FZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8

2.9

China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited Annual Report 2013

Gooadwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests over the
fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration
paid, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units and is tested annually for impairment (see
note 2.18).

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and
research and development activities

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible assets are
available for use. The following useful lives are applied:

Trademark
Patents

15 years
15 years
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B R M 5T
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EZEEBREIZE (&)

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and 29 BIEEZE (BEKRI) RIFZT

research and development activities (Cont’d)

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

° It is technically feasible to develop the product for it
to be sold;

° Adequate resources are available to complete the
development;

° There is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

° The Group is able to sell the product;

° Sale of the product will generate future economic
benefits; and

° Expenditure on the project can be measured reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over
the periods the Group expects to benefit from selling
the products developed. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above criteria
and expenditure on the research phase of internal projects
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

2.10Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets other
than interests in subsidiaries are set out below.

Financial assets are classified into loans and receivables
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition depending on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired and where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.10Financial assets (Cont’d)

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to
assess whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
If any such evidence exists, impairment loss is determined
and recognised based on the classification of the financial
asset.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments or financial
guarantee contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be designated
as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss,
except where the embedded derivative does not
significant modify the cash flows or it is clear that
separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.10Financial assets (Cont’d)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Cont’d)

Financial assets may be designated at initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria
are met:

—  The designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or recognizing
gains or losses on them on a different basis; or

— The assets are part of a group of financial assets
which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management strategy and
information about the group of financial assets
is provided internally on that basis to the key
management personnel; or

—  The financial asset contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets
included in his category are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate and transaction cost.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.10Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

—  Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— A breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— It becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

—  Significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
the assets in the group.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised in profit
or loss of the period in which the impairment occurs.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.10Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.
The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the reversal occurs.

For financial assets other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and loan and receivables that are
stated at amortised cost, impairment losses are written
off against the corresponding assets directly. Where the
recovery of trade receivables is considered doubtful but
not remote, the impairment losses for doubtful receivables
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery of trade receivables is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade receivables directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account in respect of that receivable are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

2.11Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out method, and in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprise direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated cost of completion and
applicable selling expenses.

2.12Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and in
hand, time deposits with banks within original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.13Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
accrued charges and other payables, bank borrowings
and amounts due to non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 2.20).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowing using effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited Annual Report 2013

2. FESTHBREZE ()

2.13zFEE

AEBZeRABEEENE SR
B R ERREMEMNERR - R
18 TR R FE AT BT /BB A ) 345 AR AR SR M 2
2R e

TRABEARERASMBELAGYD
FX =R - A LN SR
XHARBAEEN S BRERS
fEERA (RHFE2.20)

ERBERTZEEERRNEHIE
b - RIBURER SR EE -

W—BRBSBBERRF—ERAR
EAR EPRZ GFIRM 2 b EIEE
R HMBABERIAREKRNESR > Z
BARRERSWEIERRERRER
BERER-EHFAE  BEREER
ZEBSHEBETER -

1B~

ERNFRAFE (HREEENR
HRRAR) HER o BRERILETHENX
AHIER - PSR (IR ZRA) &
fEREE 2 M ERZRENME R HER
REBRN R AN BT R -

REAREEEGIENKERAR
WHIREBERE A RRED+ (@
A BRIERRESRSEE -

AttemERE

Hie @A BT RE QA FERR
FER SRR ERRA RRIRE R E -



Notes to the Financial Statements

AR5 AR Y i

For the year ended 30 April 2013 HZ2—ZE—=FWMA=1+H I FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.14 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

()

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases, with the following exception:

— land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon, at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease (see
note 2.6). For these purposes, the inception
of the lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over from
the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight
line basis over the lease terms except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rental are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

2.16 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods, the rendering
of services and the use by others of the Group’s assets
yielding interest, net of rebates and discounts. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of significant
risks and rewards of ownership to the customer. This is
usually taken as the time when the goods are delivered
and the customer has accepted the goods.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

2.17 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions. Government grants relating to costs
are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they
are intended to compensate. Government grants relating
to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government
grants and are recognised in profit or loss on a straight
line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.18Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of subsidiaries, other
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, land use

rights and operating lease prepayments and interests in
subsidiaries are subject to impairment testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they
are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs to sell, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generate cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to
those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from synergies of the related business combination and
represent the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units,
to which goodwill has been allocated, are credited
initially to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining
impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in
the cash generating unit, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less cost to sell, or value in use, if determinable.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.18Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont’d)

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods including impairment losses
recognised in an interim period. In respect of other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss has
been recognised.

2.19 Employee benefits

()

Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer’s contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R M 5T
For the year ended 30 April 2013 HZ2—ZE—=FWMA=1+H I FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EZEEBREIZE (&)

POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.191ES# 7 (1B
FEHIE S5 7

BREAERZAFMR  ENEEX
RERKERAR - AEEER
BERSHLRREEREMZESR
ZERZEFREFRDEE -

2.19 Employee benefits (Cont’d)
(i) Short-term employee benefits (i)

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as FRFAEERFE (NERRE
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised i) PAME B ST HVA #A R BRI 1 7R
until the time of leave. AR e

220EERAK

AU 2EREEENAERE
PREEZEERA - EA%EZ&@E%%{
EFREREOHRARTERN - &
ERBEERBEVAE-BRERNA
EHREAGHNEENEE - Eftb

2.20Borrowing costs

W

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction
or production of any qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset
is an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

/

)

oF =2

EELBERX BEXRAREEE
BARTRENHEMVUANERT
EETTHIR  BEXRATBETELR

ERAEREEMAN —#D - EE
/Vé{’f”é{?&)\%iiﬁt‘i%’%ﬁﬁ%
BRRBRIMY BB I EZXE - B8

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost
of a qualified asset when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are being undertaken. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the

activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its KAEZFEILEERE -
intended use or sale are complete.
2.21Accounting for income taxes 221 it 2 &5t 5%

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities relating
to the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid
at the reporting date. They are calculated according to
the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods
to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the
year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are
recognised as a component of tax expense in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 April 2013 i Z2 —ZE—=FMWA=+H |- FZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.21 Accounting for income taxes (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to
be carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit, including
existing taxable temporary differences, will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
difference arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability
is settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity if they relate to items that are charged
or credited to other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.
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For the year ended 30 April 2013 HZ2—ZE—=FWMA=1+H I FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.21 Accounting for income taxes (Cont’d)

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented
in net if, and only if,

(@  The Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@ the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered.

2.22 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.

The Group has identified tissue engineering — production
and sale of tissue engineering products as reportable
segment.
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For the year ended 30 April 2013 &&= —

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.22 Segment reporting (Cont’d)

—=HMA=+AIFE

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except that:

— finance costs
— income tax

— corporate income and expenses which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets except investment
property and corporate assets which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not allocated to a segment, which primarily
applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment and are not allocated to a segment.
These include deferred tax liabilities and liabilities incurred
for financing rather than operating purposes.

2.23 Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.
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For the year ended 30 April 2013 HZ2—ZE—=FWMA=1+H I FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.23 Related parties (Cont’d)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

(v)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vl A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

During the year, the Group has adopted all the amended
HKFRSs which are first effective for the reporting year and
relevant to the Group. Except as explained below, the adoption
of these amended HKFRSs did not result in material changes to
the Group’s accounting policies.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures —
Transfers of Financial Assets

The amendments to HKFRS 7 improve the disclosure
requirements for transfer transactions of financial assets and
allow users of financial statements to better understand the
possible effects of any risks that may remain with the entity on
transferred assets. The amendments also require additional
disclosures if a disproportionate amount of transfer transactions
are undertaken around the end of a reporting period.

New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective

At the date of this report, certain new and amended HKFRSs
have been published but are not yet effective, and have not
been early adopted by the Group.

The Directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period
beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement. The
Directors are currently assessing the impact of the new and
amended HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, the Directors
have preliminarily concluded that the initial application of
these HKFRSs will not result in material financial impact on
the consolidated financial statements. Information on new and
amended HKFRSs that are expected to have an impact on the
Group’s accounting policies is provided below.

HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements 2009-2011
Cycle

This standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013. The improvements made amendments
to several standards.
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For the year ended 30 April 2013 HZ2—ZE—=FWMA=1+H I FE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs 3. IRMF=IsSi&LE] BB RE

(Cont’d) #EH) (48)

New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but E B8 R EM 2 F5T - AE155T

are not yet effective (Cont’d) BB EHREER (1B)

HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements 2009-2011 BB HEER (I557F) — —FFAF

Cycle (Cont’d) B oE——FFRE BB REERCFE

i (E

() HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements () BEDEERIE 1 5 ERE 22
The amendments clarify that the requirement to present ARG HNERBENREBETK
a third statement of financial position when an entity R E I B R AAGIA B B P ET K
applies an accounting policy retrospectively or makes oM ENE =BT L
a retrospective restatement or reclassification of items MEELEE  RRURTEBEBAR
in its financial statements is limited to circumstances HEZRBEAARAZERBRERY
where there is a material effect on the information in that 2260 HOHBRRELZAHY
statement of financial position. The date of the opening EEA —BHRASRZE - MIF (&
statement of financial position is the beginning of the FEHAIALL) ZPALRAREFLG 2
preceding period and not, as at present, the beginning o BRMEEI MBS T - BRAB G
of the earliest comparative period. The amendments also HAFE1.41-44 B R B BB ERAIES
clarify that, except for disclosures required by HKAS 1.41- BMELWEIN  BABE =N
44 and HKAS 8, the related notes to the third statement Motk 2 SRR o - S Al 25188
of financial position are not required to be presented. SNV B RELLEE KL - HEB R AR AA
An entity may present additional voluntary comparative RIREBMHREZARR - 7] B
information as long as that information is prepared PE—PABNB/E  MTE—EE
in accordance with HKFRS. This may include one or BUB WK - 252 B EBINRE
more statements and not a complete set of financial HEZ 5| BRI o
statements. Related notes are required for each additional
statement presented.

(i) HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (i) g%@?f%éﬁ//% 16 HYF - BELER
The amendments clarify that items such as spare parts, BRACEIEZ BB R - Bl - #
stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are ARBHAERBSHEARNGYE
recognised as property, plant and equipment when they BELSEBIERY  AHWEABSHE
meet the definition of property, plant and equipment. BBV - BEREE TR AH
Otherwise, such items are classified as inventory. BEHBIERE -

(i) HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation (i) BEEFERIFEH M ITA - £5)
The amendments clarify that income tax relating to BRABEIFEZBBER  MBEATA
distributions to holders of an equity instrument and to HHEANMELDRRBALZS 2 X 5K
transaction costs of an equity transaction should be AWMBEBATSH - BIREEBGE
accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12 Income AIFE125 AT S HAR - RIBET RIS
Taxes. Depending on the circumstances these items o WEFTIS IR R Al e A - B
of income tax might be recognised in equity, other thEERRSIIEEPER o
comprehensive income or in profit or loss.

(iv) HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting (iv)  BBEESFERZE 34 55 RHIA 53 &
The amendments clarifies that in interim financial BRAEEIFEZ BB B - £ BH i
statements, a measure of total assets and liabilities for a AP B R85 E ] R Eb
particular reportable segment need to be disclosed when SR MAERBESHRTHAE
the amounts are regularly provided to the chief operating DEERREER  MAIBLIBE
decision maker and there has been a material change in ?&Eﬁ%ﬁgf?ﬁﬁfgﬁﬁ%#&%ﬁﬁﬁ
the total assets and liabilities for that segment from the RESEAEHE  AARERBE
amount disclosed in the last annual financial statements. BERBEZGE -
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For the year ended 30 April 2013 i Z2 —ZE—=FMWA=+H |- FZ

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs 3. IRMFEISi&LE] BB EHRE

(Cont’d)

New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

This standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2012. The amendments change the disclosure
of items presented in other comprehensive income in the
statement of comprehensive income and require entities to
separate items presented in other comprehensive income into
two groups, based on whether or not they may be recycled to
profit or loss in the future. ltems that will not be recycled will be
presented separately from items that may be recycled in the
future. Entities that choose to present other comprehensive
income items before tax will be required to show the amount of
tax related to the two groups separately. The title used by HKAS
1 for the statement of comprehensive income has changed to
“Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income”.
However, HKAS 1 permits entities to use other titles.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

This standard is effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2015. Under HKFRS 9, financial assets
are classified into financial assets measured at fair value or
at amortised cost depending on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair value gains or
losses will be recognised in profit or loss except for those non-
trade equity investments, which the entity will have a choice to
recognise the gains and losses in other comprehensive income.
HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS
39, except for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of that liability is recognised
in other comprehensive income unless that would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains
the requirements in HKAS 39 for de-recognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Cont’d)

New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Cont’d)

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

This standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013. HKFRS 10 introduces a single control
model for consolidation of all investee entities. An investor has
control when it has power over the investee (whether or not
that power is used in practice), exposure or rights to variable
returns from the investee and the ability to use the power
over the investee to affect those returns. HKFRS 10 contains
extensive guidance on the assessment of control. For example,
the standard introduces the concept of “de facto” control where
an investor can control an investee while holding less than 50%
of the investee’s voting rights in circumstances where its voting
interest is of sufficiently dominant size relative to the size and
dispersion of those of other individual shareholders to give it
power over the investee. Potential voting rights are considered
in the analysis of control only when these are substantive,
i.e. the holder has the practical ability to exercise them. The
standard explicitly requires an assessment of whether an
investor with decision making rights is acting as principal or
agent and also whether other parties with decision making
rights are acting as agents of the investor.

An agent is engaged to act on behalf of and for the benefit of
another party and therefore does not control the investee when
it exercises its decision making authority. The implementation
of HKFRS 10 may result in changes in those entities which are
regarded as being controlled by the Group and are therefore
consolidated in the financial statements. The accounting
requirements in the existing HKAS 27 on other consolidation
related matters are carried forward unchanged. HKFRS 10 is
applied retrospectively subject to certain transitional provisions.

HKFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

This standard is effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013. HKFRS 12 integrates and makes
consistent the disclosures requirements about interests
in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements. It also
introduces new disclosure requirements, including those related
to unconsolidated structured entities. The general objective
of the standard is to enable users of financial statements to
evaluate the nature and risks of a reporting entity’s interests in
other entities and the effects of those interests on the reporting
entity’s financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs 3. #RMFTEIS&IE5 BB E|E
(Cont’d) #EH) (48)

New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued but ESBHE 1 R LM 2 FAT A 1EET
are not yet effective (Cont’d) BB R EER (1B)

HKFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement BB EIREERIFE 139 — AFEZHE
This standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on IBERIR =T —=F— A — A=k 2 &%
or after 1 January 2013. HKFRS 13 provides a single source SEHHRER - BAPBREERIZE13
of guidance on how to measure fair value when it is required S ARG B AR AT ELfth ZE BN B SR Bl T &
or permitted by other standards. The standard applies to ERNTFEZE SRR - ZEREARE
both financial and non-financial items measured at fair value AFEFEZEMIBE RIECFIER « W
and introduces a fair value measurement hierarchy. The ARFEFEZR - BLAEFHF —EHER
definitions of the three levels in this measurement hierarchy CEEABERBVBRELERNETR 2
are generally consistent with HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: BT H : HFE] — B BAYBMEERNSE
Disclosures”. HKFRS 13 defines fair value as the price that 13 ATFEREAEMEL2EERTE
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability HHET2EFR S HEEEMKE
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the EEBEMXN2ER (BFEE) - %%
measurement date (i.e. an exit price). The standard removes AIBESEABE ABRENEEER I ERM
the requirement to use bid and ask prices for financial assets SHECEREERBEZHRE  MKABE
and liabilities quoted in an active market. Rather the price EEBPEZEBATHERERAFTEZE
within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of fair 1% o RERINEEF M BBRAT - BB
value in the circumstances should be used. It also contains WERFEAEATETEQAFEMRABZ A
extensive disclosure requirements to allow users of the R ASE  UERAFEFEHTBRERZ
financial statements to assess the methods and inputs used in HB o BEUBBEEAFI1IZRTRER
measuring fair values and the effects of fair value measurements A WARKERER -

on the financial statements. HKFRS 13 can early be adopted

and is applied prospectively.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. BRESTHHTRAER

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the impairment of trade
and other receivables on a regular basis. This estimate is based
on the credit history of its customers or debtors and current
market conditions. Management reassesses the impairment of
trade and other receivables at the reporting date.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
note 2.18. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on fair value less costs to sell
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates
about future cash flows and discount rates.

In the process of estimating expected future cash flows
management makes assumptions about future revenues and
profits. In the absence of the actual data of the Group’s revenue
and profit from tissue engineering operation for the year, the
assumptions about future revenues are mainly based on the
current market demand of tissue engineering products in the
PRC, the current supply of the similar products in the market,
the estimated utilisation of the Group’s production capacity and
the management’s current assessment of the economic outlook.
The unit selling price is assumed to remain constant throughout
the forecasted period. The assumptions about future profits are
mainly based on the available market data of the profit margin
ratio of companies engaged in the tissue engineering industry in
the global market. As these assumptions relate to future events
and circumstances, the actual results may vary and may cause
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of goodwill within
the next financial year.

Determining the appropriate discount rate involves estimating
the appropriate adjustment for market risk and for asset specific
risk factors. The management has taken consideration of risk-
free rate (reference to the yield of the long term bond issued in
the PRC), the cost of equity and debt of the companies within
the tissue engineering industry and other possible risk factors
such as the new commencement of the Group’s production
facilities in the near future and the market capitalisation of the
Group in estimating the discount rate. Details of the estimates
of the recoverable amounts of cash generating units containing
goodwill are disclosed in note 20.

Estimated impairment of other intangible assets

The carrying values of other intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment when there are any indications that the carrying
value of other intangible assets may not be recoverable. The
Group considered that no fact and circumstances occurred
which would suggest that the carrying amount of other
intangible assets may exceed its recoverable amount.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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4.
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5. REVENUE

FOA=THLFE

The Group’s turnover represents revenue from its principal
activities, measured at the net invoiced value of goods sold,
after allowances for returns and trade discounts during the

years presented.

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors have identified the Group’s tissue
engineering as operating segment as further described in note

2.22.

The operating segment is monitored and strategic decisions are
made on the basis of adjusted segment operating results.

Wy z8

AEBZEXBENAFEARBETER
B RHRRERBEZFINR2CEERE
SEEE 2R -

DEER
NWTESCHRRASEARTIREALE Y
2B WHAHIFE2.22 FFil ©

RIBEAR D I EERZEE D BEN

EEE RAEHIRE o

Tissue engineering

ABTRE
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
Revenue e
— From external customers — REINARF 1,377 128
Reportable segment revenue o EBULER 1,377 128
Reportable segment loss o EEIE (48,108) (54,831)
Amortisation of land use rights T AR RS E TR
and operating lease prepayments FRIE 5 110 108
Amortisation of other intangible assets H b A S 15,395 15,411
Depreciation e 3,132 2,200
Interest income B WA 244 1,598
Reportable segment assets PEEE 496,617 487,283
Additions to non-current segment FHRERBOEBEEZARE
assets during the year 14,155 53,441
Reportable segment liabilities AEHEE 63,631 87,005
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

6.

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segment
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in the

financial statements as follows:

DEPEFR (B

RER B2 70 BR 51 TR 0 48 BE S AR 6 (B X B 7%
WRISH AR B EIRERMT

2013 2012

—E—= =EE——E

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#&T T

Reportable segment revenue 7 Ep U EE 1,377 128
Group revenue SE W 1,377 128
Reportable segment loss D EPEE (48,108) (54,831)
Unallocated corporate income RAOMEERA 200 330
Unallocated corporate expenses ROMEERS (19,772) (13,071)
Finance costs Ve (1,694) (1,540
Loss before income tax MrFTISTRRIEE (69,374) (69,112)
Reportable segment assets DEPEE 496,617 487,283
Investment property "EYHE - 1,015
Debt element of convertible bond AR ESR 2 B D 4,261 =
Option embedded in the convertible bond AR ES 2 Nk A 2 =
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReSMEER 248,292 8,805
Other corporate assets HEMpEEE 4,013 3,184
Group assets SEEE 753,185 500,287
Reportable segment liabilities DEPBEE 63,631 87,005
Bank borrowings RITEE 37,980 37,125
Provision for taxation IR - 975
Deferred taxation IRAEFIR 19,278 21,208
Other corporate liabilities EmbEafE 1,378 1,316
Group liabilities SEAE 122,267 147,629
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

The Group’s revenue from external customers and its non-
current assets are divided into the following geographical areas:

6.

external customers

DEER (B
AEEEANREEH K REERDEE
RHEHHT :

Non-current assets
(excluding debt element
of convertible bond)

Revenue from

ERBEE
(TEFETRRES
REIREF KR ZEBEBT)
2013 2012 2013 2012
ZE-=f| 22— | ZB-=ZF | =%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TAT THET TAT
Hong Kong BH - = 194 1,165
The PRC (domicile) B (EBBFTTEHD) 1,377 128 441,292 443,653
1,377 128 441,486 444,818

During the year, 98% (2012: 82%) of the Group’s revenue
depended on a single customer. As at 30 April 2013, 68% of
the Group’s trade receivables was due from this customer (2012:
Nil).

The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the services were provided or the goods delivered.
The geographical location of the non-current assets is based
on (1) the physical location of the assets (for property, plant and
equipment, land use rights and operating lease prepayments
and investment property) and (2) location of operations (for
goodwill and other intangible assets). The Company is an
investment holding company where the Group has majority
of its operation and workforce in the PRC, and therefore, the
PRC is considered as the Group’s country of domicile for the
purpose of the disclosures as required by HKFRS 8 “Operating
Segments”.
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. UBEEA

2013 2012
—F—= b S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT

Interest on bank borrowings, HAR—FAZHEER

other payables and amounts due to ZRITE - HAEL

non-controlling interests of subsidiaries EEIE&f1ﬁMTJ?’A
wholly repayable within one year FEVE AR AR SR A 25 5k 0E 2 T & 4,685 3,433
Less: Amount capitalised (note) B BER e (W) (2,991) (1,893)
1,694 1,540

Note: Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose from the bank
borrowings specifically for the construction of the factory building
in the PRC. Such amount was capitalised in the construction in

Mz FRERERANTEKRERZRORITES
EEZBERABEEARL  XERFRG
AEZIRZH -

progress during the year.

8. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. PFRFTISBiRIESIE
2013 2012
—E—= —_ZF——
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH&T Fi&T
Loss before income tax has been BRATS R ATEIBE Nk
arrived at after charging/(crediting): (3T A) T3I&IE :
Auditor’s remuneration % SN B 605 602
Amortisation of land use rights T AR R A e E TR
and operating lease prepayments OB 110 108
Amortisation of other intangible assets, H i a Egs
included in administrative expenses (BEREETERASZH) 15,395 15,411
Depreciation = 3,135 2,203
Exchange difference, net ERZR OFF) 1,125 1
Operating lease rentals in respect WAEYFE2E2HERS
of office premises 4,423 4,130
Research and development costs [IREID TN 21,481 14,668
Employee benefit expense EERAMY (BIEESEWS
(including directors’ (F5E9) ) (FfFEE10)
emoluments (note 9)) (note 10) 16,972 15,687
Other receivables written off o fE IR AR TR 85 141 138
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment property &2 N FER L, (38 H0) 209 (327)
Change in fair value of derivatives AR E% < Nk B R
embedded in convertible bond NP EZES 730 —
Rental income Ha A - (59)
Imputed interest income on convertible bond A& 4 2 #EH F S U A (193) —
Interest income FEUA (251) (1,633)
Loss on disposals of property, MEWE  BEREHE
plant and equipment, net 2 E51E (F58) 5 —
Other payables and amounts due to e H b R ARIE
non-controlling interests i YNSIE Sl i
of subsidiaries waived (note 28) Wz I8 (H5E28) (5,873) —
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 9. EEKSHEEEMNE
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

Contribution
to defined
Salaries and contribution
Fees allowances plans Total
ERMHHN
fig FEREH a2 ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR THER
Year ended 30 April 2013 BE-Z-=EMA=THLEE
Executive directors UITES
Mr. Dai Yumin HIHAE - 1,440 15 1,455
Mr. Yang Zhengguo BERLE - 931 19 950
Mr. Luo Xian Ping EBTr4E
(resigned on 23 August 2012) (RZZ—ZEN\AZ+=HET) - 449 5 454
Dr. Gao Gunter BEEL
(resigned on 6 August 2012) (RZZ—Z%/\A~BEf) - 64 3 67
Independent BUEHTESE
non-executive directors
Mr. Lui Tin Nang YN Bk 112 - - 112
Mr. Chan Wing Hang RkELE 112 - - 112
Mr. Chiu Chi Kong BEREE
(appointed on 20 September 2012)  (M=E——FAA-+HEZT) 74 - - 74
Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny B2 Vit
(appointed on 20 September 2012)  (R=E——FNA-+REZT) 74 - - 74
Mr. Sze Chin Hung MRS E
(resigned on 6 August 2012) (RZE——FN\AABEEL) 27 - - 27
Non-executive director FYTES
Mr. Wong Sai Hung BHHLA 1,000 - 11 1,011
Mr. Ma Long B e 1,042 - - 1,042
Prof. Jin Yan SEHE
(appointed on 6 August 2012) (RZE-——FN\AABEZRA) 177 483 - 660
Mr. Sze Cheung Pang eI A
(resigned on 23 August 2012) (RZE-—FN\AZ+=HEH) 75 - - 75
2,693 3,367 53 6,113
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

9. EERSREEREME (B)

Contribution
to defined
Salaries and contribution
Fees allowances plans Total
EREHN
ik Fe ki REPAES at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TB T THL THL
Year ended 30 April 2012 BE-Z-—EMA=t+HLEE
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Dai Yumin HIHAE - 1,440 12 1,452
Mr. Luo Xian Ping BBk - 1,440 12 1,452
Dr. Gao Gunter afEEt - 240 - 240
Mr. Yang Zhengguo BIEE%E - 549 25 574
Mr. Tin Ka Pak BZRRLE
(resigned on 11 May 2011) (R=Z——FRA+—BEMA) - 7 = 7
Independent BUEHTEE
non-executive directors
Mr. Lui Tin Nang EYN 7 100 - - 100
Mr. Sze Chin Hung MRS E 100 = = 100
Mr. Chan Wing Hang BkERE
(appointed on 9 August 2011) (R=F——ENANAEZH) 73 = = 73
Mr. Cheung Siu Chung kLA
(resigned on 11 May 2011) (RZE——FRA+—-RET) 3 - - 3
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Wong Sai Hung St 717 = 2 719
Mr. Sze Cheung Pang eI A 240 - - 240
Mr. Ma Long ol e 820 - - 820
2,053 3,676 51 5,780

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2012: Nil).

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

FABBESHRAFNERETAME 2%

B(ZF—=—F &)

AEBWEAEFMERAME  (FRINA
AN 5= B S DA TR S 18 By 2 SR =X B B

f& -
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 9.
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

Employees’ emoluments

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year included four (2012: four) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
In 2013, the emoluments of the remaining one (2012: one)
individual were as follows:

EERENEE

ESH <

B (&)

AEEFALERSFALEREDNS (ZF
——F 0% EF - HMERRR EdD
—ZF -8 7 (—T o=
F:—B) ALTHBESWT

il i

2013 2012
=l == — T ——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Salaries and other benefits e LEMEA 675 650
Retirement benefits scheme contributions iR K& FI 52| LK 15 12
690 662
The emoluments of the highest paid non-director individuals fell WHEENZSFATHMEN FATEE
within the following band: LA -

Number of individual

AE

2013
—Eg—=

2012
T ——F

Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z — 1,000,000 % 7T

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (including

directors’ emoluments)

10. BERFFEX (BEESEME)

2013 2012

—=E-= —E——4F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FH&T

Wages and salaries TERF® 13,913 12,988
Pension costs — defined contribution plans  RKE A — FREH T E 1,471 1,284
Other staff benefits HmETwEF 1,588 1,415
16,972 15,687
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11. INCOME TAX CREDIT gl

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided as the Group
has no assessable profits for the year (2012: Nil). Taxation
on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates.

Pt

HRAREFAL B EFMERTORHN © &
Y EAREMBENER (ZF——F:
Z) o BINNERIRBAFE B R
EARAEBEEME 2 BITRERAE o

2013 2012
—E—= =EE—==%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE&T FHT

Profits tax — the PRC FFH —
Current year REEZ - 965
Under provision in prior years BEFERETR 40 —
Deferred taxation (note 30) EIEFIE (M3 30) (1,930) (1,935)
Total income tax credit RETSTHE S (1,890) (970)

Reconciliation between income tax credit and accounting loss
at applicable tax rates:

BRERAREAEZMERERL G BRZ
HERIT

2013 2012
= et T o
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Loss before income tax MRATSBIATES 18 (69,374) (69,112)
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5%  IRZ&EBFIEHRHE 16.5%
(2012: 16.5%) (ZZT——% :16.5%)
FFENBIE (11,446) (11,403)
Effect of different tax rates R Bl 2 B AR
of subsidiaries operating in the PRC TEMENZE 747 850
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AT AERR 2 RS2 89
for tax purpose Mg g 8,802 9,584
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBBANR &
for tax purpose (33) (1)
Under provision in prior years BEFERETIR 40 —
Income tax credit FriSHiE R (1,890) (970)
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12. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE  12. &NQAR#EB AE(LEE
COMPANY

Of the consolidated loss attributable to owners of the RAREIHEE AR E B &1 61,320,000
Company of HK$61,320,000 (2012: HK$57,109,000), a loss of B (=T — = & :57,109,000/8 )
HK$18,246,000 (2012: HK$15,014,000) has been dealt with in F o A2 8018,246,0008 L (=T — — & :
the financial statements of the Company. 15,014,000/ 7T) 2 BHEE T AR R E 28
B °
13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for EEVITEBERNAFERE (ZE—=
the year (2012: Nil). F M)
14. LOSS PER SHARE 14. BREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share KAEEB ANELHEBREARETEEIR
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following BATEREE -
data:
2013 2012
—E—= —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Loss for the year attributable to owners AU ESREREBE 2 AR
of the Company for the purpose BB ABLFEEE
of basic loss per share (61,320) (57,109)
2013 2012
—=E—= —E——F
’000 ‘000
T T
Number of shares BB E
Weighted average number of ordinary AU ESREREE 2 LBk
shares for the purpose of basic loss pili RS
per share 7,409,579 7,056,880
Diluted loss per share for the years ended 30 April 2013 and 30 mﬁéimﬁﬁ{{fﬂa?‘ﬁ_/g %@H_Q ©
April 2012 is not presented as there were no potential ordinary EmZ258 F&'a%z?:_: T—=F1mA :—f i )S%
shares in issue during the years. T C—HFNUA=t+HIFEZBREEH
B o
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 9% - BMEKRE
The Group FEF
Furniture
and  Computer Motor Construction
Buildings  equipment  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BF GAREE B RE ERIR &5t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T THT THT THL
At 1 May 2011 R-E-—§HA-H
Cost KA 670 12,216 457 4,373 50,632 68,348
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE - (1,028) (301) (1,336) = (2,665)
Net book amount REFE 670 11,188 156 3,037 50,632 65,683
Year ended 30 April 2012 BE-_EZ-"EMA=1H
LEE
Opening net book amount HREE 670 11,188 156 3,037 50,632 65,683
Exchange differences ERES 18 277 3 37 1,330 1,665
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36)  WEERBAR] (Fii3E36) - - 17 174 = 191
Additions HE = 14,320 128 = 38,993 53 441
Transfer to investment property SRERANE (W3E17)

(note 17) (688) - - - - (688)
Depreciation Vil - (1,104) (105) (994) - (2,203)
Closing net book amount HREmFE s 24,681 199 2,254 90,955 118,089
At 30 April 2012 R-E-“EMA=1A
Cost KA - 26,876 615 4,611 90,955 123,057
Accumulated depreciation ZiNE - (2,195) (416) (2,357) = (4,968)
Net book amount REFE - 24,681 199 2,254 90,955 118,089
Year ended 30 April 2013 HER-2-=F

MAZTHLEE

Opening net book amount HEmFE - 24,681 199 2,254 90,955 118,089
Exchange differences ERER ) 512 1 24 1,464 1,997
Disposal & - - - (529) - (529)
Additions AE - 12,099 121 255 1,680 14,155
Transfers EE 94,099 - - - (94,099) -
Depreciation ik (145) (1,082) (91) (917) - (3,135)
Closing net book amount HRERFE 93,950 35,310 230 1,087 - 130,577
At 30 April 2013 R-E-=£MA=+A

Cost KR 94,099 39,613 743 2,951 - 137,406
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (149) (4,303) (519) (1,864) - (6,829)
Net book amount REFE 93,950 35,310 230 1,087 - 130,577
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥)2% » BMEKR&E (&)

(Cont’d)
The Group (Cont’d) AEE ()
As at 30 April 2013, certain of the Group’s property, plant and RZZE—=FMA=+H ' AEER@FE

93,950,000/ 7T (=& —=4F : 90,955,000
BIL) 2 ETHE - BEREZEE THEMR
LAAREBEARITER (M5E29) « ZiR
TERERREBREZHEE  BRERF

equipment with net carrying amount of HK$93,950,000 (2012:
HK$90,955,000) were pledged to secure the bank borrowings
granted to the Group (note 29). Such bank borrowings have
been fully repaid subsequent to the reporting date and the

charge has been released accordingly. BN -
The Company AV |
Furniture and Computer
equipment equipment Total
EIRBE BKEEM =X
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHIT FHT T
At 1 May 2011 R=Z——%HA—H
Cost [DEN 2 15 17
Accumulated depreciation ZEHITE — — —
Net book amount BREFE 2 15 7
Year ended 30 April 2012 BE-Z—_—_FWMAB=+H
LFE
Opening net book amount BRYIERE A 2 15 17
Depreciation e - €) (€)
Closing net book amount BREREFAE 2 12 14
At 30 April 2012 R-E——FMA=+H
Cost [B%N 2 15 17
Accumulated depreciation ZHHTE — ) (€)
Net book amount ARTEDFE 2 12 14
Year ended 30 April 2013 BE-ZE—=%0A=+H
LHFEE
Opening net book amount BAIERTE FAE 2 12 14
Depreciation e (2) (12) (14)
Closing net book amount HARARTEDHE — — —
At 30 April 2013 R-ZE—=FNA=1+H
Cost B AR 2 15 14
Accumulated depreciation ZEE 2 (15) (14)
Net book amount IREEE — - -
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For the year ended 30 April 2013 HZ2—ZE—=FWMA=1+H I FE

16. LAND USE RIGHTS AND OPERATING LEASE

17.

16. TibfE AEREEHEFRNTIR

PREPAYMENTS
2013 2012
=g—= ===
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FAT
Opening net carrying amount HAYIAR T SHAE 5,157 5,132
Exchange differences ERER 115 133
Annual charges of prepaid lease payments BN E 2 FE X H (110) (108)
Closing net carrying amount HRERE A 5,162 5,157

The Group’s land use rights and operating lease prepayments
represent up-front payments to acquire interests in the usage of
lands situated in the PRC, which are held under medium-term
leases.

As at 30 April 2013 and 2012, the Group’s entire land use rights
were pledged to secure the bank borrowings granted to the
Group (note 29). Such bank borrowings have been fully repaid
subsequent to the reporting date and the charge has been
released accordingly.

AREE 2 T ARG EHERNFIRR
WIB R Bz L3t 2 (M (LA HIE
EWARH) ZTBFHHE -

RIE—=FR-_FT——FWUWA=+H" &
SERs2HIMERAED TER - UAX
EEEMSRITER (MFE29) - ZIRITEK
BERBmEREEEER  BREEFEND

WE -

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 17. BEYZE
2013 2012
—E—-= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Carrying amount at beginning of the year FHREE 1,015 —

Transfer from property, plant REWE - BE

and equipment (note 15) FiE 83 (M3E15) - 688
Fair value change NEEEZS (209) 327
Disposal s (806) —
Carrying amount at end of the year FRIRMEE - 1,015

As at 30 April 2012, the Group’s investment property was
situated in the PRC, which was held under medium-term leases.
It was revalued by independent professionally qualified valuers,
Ascent Partners Transaction Service Limited, who had the recent
experience in the location and category of property being valued.
Fair values were estimated based on recent market transactions
for similar properties in the same location and condition.

During the year, the investment property was used to settle
other payables and amounts due to non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries (note 28).

R-E——FOA=1+H  AEBEURHE
ZEEME  IIRETHEERE - BTiH
BUEXSERBEMIAEERIREE
[RAR (A EBHE MR R R BIEN
TEAARER) BHTEE - R TFEDRENRR—
WE N E— R REYE TSR ZM
flat °

FR - REVECARNEEEGBERNTEAR

FEAT B BB A BSR4 AR IR R A S 2 ZE (B 5E
28) °
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For the year ended 30 April 2013 i Z2 —ZE—=FMWA=+H |- FZ

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RMIBARIZIRE

2013 and 2012

—B—=FF

—E——F

HK$’000

T

Unlisted shares, at cost JE LM - FRAAAE 200
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 30 April 2013 ARRR_E—=ZFWA=THZEEN B

are set out in note 38. NEFBEHRHESS o

19. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES  19. FEU  (FEfT) HiB A RFKIE

2013 2012

—E—=fF —E—_4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#&T FH&TT

Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U Bt 88 1 B SR IE 541,677 401,229

Less: Allowance for impairment B REREE

At beginning of the year F1 (44,397) (42,397)

Provision made during the year FARE - (2,000)

At end of the year FR (44,397) (44,397)

497,280 356,832

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free FEU, (FERT) B A R 2 318 A -
and repayable on demand. RERIBRENRIEE o
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20. GOODWILL 20.

This arose from the acquisition of FD(H) Investments Limited
and its subsidiaries, which are engaged in the production and
sales of tissue engineering skin related products, in 2008. The

]

I

il

5] £ HRZ-ZZEZE N F K BEFDH
Investments Limited &2 E i@ A ) (=4

ENHEABT RN ERBEER) XN - B

net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as follows: EB7EMFERDTAT :
2013 2012
—E—-= —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FHET
At beginning of the year F4)
Gross carrying amount HRERHEE 141,310 141,310
Accumulated impairment 25 RVE — —
Net carrying amount BREFE 141,310 141,310
Net carrying amount at beginning of the year %] 2 BRI /F{E 141,310 141,310
Impairment losses BEEE — =
Net carrying amount at end of the year FRZEREFE 141,310 141,310
At end of the year FR
Gross carrying amount HRERHEE 141,310 141,310
Accumulated impairment 25T RE - =
Net carrying amount AREDFE 141,310 141,310

The recoverable amounts for the cash-generating unit of tissue
engineering was determined based on fair value less cost to
sell calculation using discounted cash flow technique, covering
detailed five-year budget plans, followed by an extrapolation of
expected cash flows with no growth. The pre-tax discount rate
used for fair value less cost to sell calculation is 18% (2012:
16%) per annum, which reflects specific risks relating to the
relevant cash-generating unit.

Apart from the considerations described above in determining
the fair value less costs to sell of the cash-generating unit,
the Group’s management is not currently aware of any other
probable changes that would necessitate changes in their key
assumptions. However, the estimate of recoverable amount of
the Group’s cash generating units is particularly sensitive to the
discount rate applied.

HBTREZRSEABEUNA LSRR
EERMBARSRESL RAFREFS -
ViREFERRXAURFRSRE) fEZ
NFEMHEERATEETE - R FERH
EXRRHBRATIREB18% (ZF——F:
16%) » REABRIIR © E 4 B 2 (BRI =R -

BETRSEE BN A TEREE KA
ZEBRAERN  AEEZEEERBI A
BEMEMAEZE  CHFEBRTE
Bk - A > AREReELSBM KOS
B ERTEMRA TR R R -

2013 FHFH PELEVBEBENRERLF
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For the year ended 30 April 2013 i Z2 —ZE—=FMWA=+H |- FZ

21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

21. HEBEE

Trademark Patents Total
[ =7 |5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T
At 1 May 2011 R-ZZE——FHA—H
Cost AR 79,985 151,066 231,051
Accumulated amortisation 25T 5 (13,335) (24,9993) (38,328)
Net book amount BREDFE 66,650 126,073 192,723
Year ended 30 April 2012 BE-Z2——F
MA=+tHLEE
Opening net book amount BAYIERTE A 66,650 126,073 192,723
Additions NE — 1,208 1,208
Exchange differences ERER - 727 727
Amortisation By (5,337) (10,074) (15,411)
Closing net book amount BASRER TN FAE 61,313 117,934 179,247
At 30 April 2012 R-ZE——FWA=+H
Cost A 79,985 153,197 233,182
Accumulated amortisation ESiE 35 (18,672) (35,263) (53,935)
Net book amount EREFE 61,313 117,934 179,247
Year ended 30 April 2013 BE-ZE—=
MA=+tRHLEE
Opening net book amount BAYIERTE FAE 61,313 117,934 179,247
Exchange differences ERZER — 585 585
Amortisation 5 (5,337) (10,058) (15,395)
Closing net book amount BASRER T FAE 55,976 108,461 164,437
At 30 April 2013 R-ZE—=FWNA=+H
Cost [B%N 79,985 154,058 234,043
Accumulated amortisation ESiE 35 (24,009) (45,597) (69,606)
Net book amount FREFE 55,976 108,461 164,437
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22. DEBT ELEMENT OF CONVERTIBLE BOND/

22. FHARME S 2 EHEMD, AR

OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN CONVERTIBLE
BOND

On 1 June 2012, the Group subscribed the zero coupon
convertible bond with an aggregate amount of HK$4,800,000
issued by the Incorporation of Financial Technicians Limited,
a private company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability, with maturity on 31 May 2015. The Group is entitled to
exercise the conversion option at any time during the period
commencing from the date of issue of the convertible bond up
to the close of business on a date no later than five business
days prior to the date fixed for redemption thereof. The
conversion price is HK$1 per share.

The movement of the carrying amount of the components of
the convertible bond is set out below:

&2 2 W HEREARE

R-E——FXA—B FA5ERBETHE
BER (R BRAR(EEEZMAIZE
RABREFERAR)AETNR _T—A%FA
A=1T—BIHNTRAIBRKRES  BF5
4,800,00078 7T ° A& BN AI A IRE S ETT
REEREEEDRHMTERAEZEXAR
ZERRREERA - AREETARBITER
Pt - MRERER1ET -

AR ESFAK D < REEEZEH |40
I 3

Debt Derivative

element element Total
BEI;H FTETAIBH a5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Subscription on 1 June 2012 RZZE——FA—BRE 4,068 732 4,800
Effective imputed interest income ERHEER WA 193 — 193
Change in fair value DFEZEE = (730) (730)
As at 30 April 2013 BE-E—=5mWA=+AH 4,261 2 4,263

(1) Valuation of debt element (1) EEZnz21dE

The debt element is recognised at fair value at date
of initial recognition and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. As at
30 April 2013, the carrying amount of the debt element
is approximately HK$4,261,000 which was calculated
based on the present value of contractually determined
stream of cash flows discounted at the required yield,
which was determined with reference to bond issuers of
similar credit rating and remaining time to maturity. The
effective interest rate of the debt component is 5.677%
per annum.

The fair value of the debt element at initial recognition is
determined with reference to the valuation performed by
an independent professional valuer.

R ERB R A FEERESLS
- IRERABRMEIEFEZ
BEXKAFE - BE_T—=F0

4,261,000 7T * EREE BIS RE
TRESTAMEE®R (J32EHLUE
B R MESET ARFSE BEME)
BRI EHBAE - BBEBHNERFF
RE567TTE -

EHEDENRERRORFELZ
ZHBYFEXRGEMETHRE -

2013 £FH PEEYBEBENEERAA
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For the year ended 30 April 2013 i Z2 —ZE—=FMWA=+H |- FZ

22. FHAMRMES 2 EHEMD, AR
& 2 WERHRE (FF)

22. DEBT ELEMENT OF CONVERTIBLE BOND/
OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN CONVERTIBLE
BOND (Cont’d)

2) TItIAZG21EE

TET RSN ENRERMLETE
BRRFEHER o

(2) Valuation of derivative element

The derivative element is recognised at fair value at initial
recognition and subsequent measurement.

TTET AN 2ER -HEAREERG
18 - AR ZBIBEMT

Binomial model is used for valuation of derivative ele